
August 22, 2019 -1- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

I hereby certify that the following agenda 
was posted at least 72 hours prior to the time 
of the meeting so noticed below at 24251 Los  
Alisos Boulevard, Lake Forest, California.  

 
 

        
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary of the 
El Toro Water District and the Board of   
Directors thereof   
    
  

AGENDA 
 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

(Director Monin will participate via teleconference 
from:  the Manchester Grand Hyatt, 1 Market Place, 

San Diego, CA) 

 
August 22, 2019 

7:30 a.m. 
 

 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER – President Vergara 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Director Gaskins 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Members of the public may address the Board at this time or they may 
reserve this opportunity with regard to an item on the agenda, until said item 
is discussed by the Board.  Comments on other items will be heard at the 
time set aside for “DIRECTORS COMMENTS/NON-AGENDA ITEMS.”  The 
public will identify themselves when called on and limit their comments to 
three minutes. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 
Determine need and take action to agendize items(s) which arose subsequent 
to the posting of the Agenda. (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this 
recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of the Board members present, or, 
if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of 
those members present.) 
 
 
 



August 22, 2019 -2- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

PRESENTATION OF AWARDS, RECOGNITIONS AND INTRODUCTIONS  

a. Service Awards  
 

There are no acknowledgements. 
 

b. Continuing Education & Training, Degree and Certification Program 
acknowledgement  
 

1. Mr. Cafferty will recognize and congratulate Robert McKern, 
Customer Field Representative 1, for obtaining his Water 
Treatment Operator Grade T2 from the State of California 
Water Resources Control Board. 

 
c. Special District/Employee Association/Community Award 

Acknowledgement and Employee Special Recognition 
 

There are no acknowledgements. 
 
1. Quarterly Review of the District’s 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan 

(Reference Material Included) 
 

A HighMark representative will review and comment on the investment 
performance of the District’s 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

(All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion unless a 
Board member or a member of the public requests separate action or discussion 
on a specific item) 
 
2. Approval of Minutes/Conferences (Minutes Included) 
 

a. Consider approving the minutes of the July 25, 2019 Board meeting 
 

b. Consider approving the Directors to attend the American Water 
Resource Association (AWRA) conference November 3-7, 2019 in 
Salt Lake City, UT 

 

c. Consider approving Director Gaskins to participate on the 
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Water Quality 
Committee 

 

d. Consider approving Director Monin to participate on the Association 
of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Finance Committee 

 



August 22, 2019 -3- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

APPROVAL OF ITEMS REMOVED FROM TODAY’S CONSENT 

CALENDAR 

 
The Board will discuss items removed from today’s Consent Calendar 
requiring further discussion. 
 
Recommended Action: The Board will be requested to approve the items 
removed from today’s consent Calendar. 
 
DIRECTOR/COMMITTEE REPORTING 
 
3. Director Reports for Meetings Attended (Oral Report) 
 
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION ITEMS 

  
4. ACWA Region 10 Board Election (Reference Material Included) 
 

Staff and the Board will review and comment on the ACWA Region 10 
Board Ballot and Nominating Committee’s Recommended Slate and 
Individual Board Candidate Nominations for Chair, Vice-Chair, and 
Board Members. 

 
Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Board authorize 
the General Manager to cast the vote for the ACWA Region 10 Board 
Ballot according to the Board’s decision. 

 
5. Consulting Agreement with Bob Hill (Reference Material Included) 
 

Staff will review and comment on the proposed consulting agreement 
with Bob Hill. 

 
Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Board of Directors 
authorize the District’s General Manager to enter into a consulting 
contract with Bob Hill for periodic support services. 

 
6. Resolution No. 19-8-3 Charlie Wilson Resolution  (Reference 

Material Included) 
 

Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution No. 19-8-3 which 
commends Charlie Wilson on his 19 years of service with the Santa 
Margarita Water District, and his more than 17 years serving on the 
County of Orange Board of the OC LAFCO. 

 
 
 
 



August 22, 2019 -4- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Board approve 
Resolution No. 19-8-3 which commends Charlie Wilson on his 19 years 
of service with the Santa Margarita Water District, and his more than 17 
years serving on the County of Orange Board of the OC LAFCO, and 
authorize the General Manager to present the Resolution to Charlie 
Wilson. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-8-3 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

COMMENDING CHARLIE WILSON FOR HIS 
DEDICATION TO THE SANTA MARGARITA WATER DISTRICT 

AND TO THE OC LAFCO 
 
7. Resolution No. 19-8-4 Modifying Standing Committee and External 

Organization Board and Staff Assignments (Reference Material 
Included) 

 
The Board President will review and comment on Resolution No. 19-8-4 
Modifying Standing Committee and External Organization Board and 
Staff Assignments for the balance of Calendar Year 2019, effective 
August 22,  2019. 

 
Recommended Action:  The Board of Directors will consider adopting 
Resolution No. 19-8-4, effective August 22, 2019. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-8-4 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 
MODIFYING STANDING AND EXTERNAL ORGANIZATION 

BOARD AND STAFF ASSIGNMENTS FOR THE BALANCE OF 2019 
EFFECTIVE AUGUST 22, 2019 

 
GENERAL MANAGER INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
8. General Manager’s Monthly Report (Report Included) 

 
Staff will review and comment on the General Manager’s Monthly 
Report. 

 
9. Legislative Reports (Reference Materials Included) 
 

Staff and General Counsel will review and comment on the Legislative 
reports. 

 
 



August 22, 2019 -5- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

10. Public Education and Outreach & Water Conservation Reports 
(Reference Material Included) 

 
11. SOCWA Reports (Reference Material Included)  
 

a. SOCWA Special Board Meeting – August 8, 2019 

b. SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting – August 15, 2019 

c. SOCWA Special Finance Committee Meeting – August 20, 2019 

 
12. Municipal Water District Of Orange County (MWDOC) Report 

(Reference Material Included) 

a. MWDOC Planning/Operations Committee – August 5, 2019  

b. MWDOC/MET Directors Workshop – August 7, 2019 

c. MWDOC Public Affairs & Legislation Committee – August 12, 2019 

d. MWDOC Administration & Finance Committee – August 14, 2019  

e. MWDOC Board Meeting – August 21, 2019 

 

13. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Report  

 
a. Report on the August 14, 2019 LAFCO meeting   

 
14. South Orange County Watershed Management Area (SOCWMA) 
 Management and/or Executive Committee Report 
 

a. Report on the August 8, 2019 SOCWMA Executive Committee 
meeting. 

 
15. ISDOC Meetings (Reference Material Included) 
 

a. Report on the August 6, 2019 ISDOC Executive Committee 

    Meeting 

 
16. WACO Meetings (Reference Material Included) 
 

a. Report on the August 2,  2019 WACO Meeting 
 

b. Report on the August 20, 2019 WACO Planning Committee 
meeting 

 
17. City Coordination Efforts 



August 22, 2019 -6- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

There was no meeting. 
 

COMMITTEE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

18. Dates to Remember for August/September 2019(Reference Material 
Included) 

 

19. Carry-Over Pending Matters  

  
DIRECTOR COMMENTS/NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT  
 
CLOSED SESSION 

  

At this time the Board will go into Closed Session as follows: 
 

1. At this time the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (2) to consult with legal 
counsel and staff –Potential Litigation (one matter). 
 

2. At this time the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (2) to consult with legal 
counsel and staff –Potential Litigation (one matter) Application to File 
Late Claim – Marlene Jean aka Marlene Jean Trusik (Claimant). 

 
REGULAR SESSION 
 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION (Legal Counsel) 
 
          Mr. Granito will provide an oral report on the Closed Session. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Recommended Action: The Board will be requested to take action 
adjourning today’s Board meeting to Thursday, September 26, 2019 at 
7:30 a.m. at the El Toro Water District, 24251 Los Alisos Boulevard, 
Lake Forest, California. 
 

The agenda material for this meeting is available to the public at the District's Administrative Office, 
which is located at 24251 Los Alisos Blvd., Lake Forest, Ca. 92630. If any additional material related to 
an open session agenda item is distributed to all or a majority of the board of directors after this agenda 
is posted, such material will be made available for immediate public inspection at the same location. 
 
Request for Disability-Related Modifications or Accommodations 
 
If you require any disability-related accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
participate in this public meeting, please telephone the District's Recording Secretary, Polly Welsch at 
(949) 837-7050, extension 225 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to said meeting.  If you prefer, your 



August 22, 2019 -7- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

request may be submitted in writing to El Toro Water District, P.O. Box 4000, Laguna Hills, California 
92654, Attention: Polly Welsch. 







































































































































































Consulting Contract between ETWD and Mr. Robert Hill 

 

 

For the benefit of the El Toro Water District, the General Manager, and the Board of Directors, 

staff wishes to enter into a consultant agreement with Mr. Robert Hill, retired General Manager 

of the El Toro Water District.   

 

Securing the services of Mr. Hill will facilitate a smooth transition following his retirement.  At 

the direction of the General Manager, Mr. Hill will provide services on an as-needed basis for 

purposes concerning matters relating to the management and organization of the District. 

 

Staff met with the Human Resources Committee who are in agreement with the contents of the 

consulting letter of agreement to Mr. Hill.   

 

The District’s attorney, Mr. Gilbert J. Granito, Esq. has reviewed the consulting letter of 

agreement.   

 

 

Recommended Action at the August 22, 2019 Board Meeting:   

 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the District’s General Manager to enter 

into a consulting contract with Bob Hill for periodic support services.     

 

 

By: Judy Cimorell 

Date: August 15, 2019 
 



 

 

Date 

 

Mr. Robert Hill 

 

Dear Bob, 

The following is a summary of the agreement regarding as-needed consulting services following your 

retirement from El Toro Water District. 

Beginning ________________, you have agreed to be available remotely and if needed in the office for 

consulting purposes concerning matters relating to the management and organization of the District to 

ensure a smooth transition resulting from your retirement. This agreement may be terminated by either 

party, with or without cause, by giving the other party thirty (30) days written notice.   

During the provision of any necessary consulting services you will be acting as an independent 

contractor. The District will not deduct or withhold any taxes, FICA or other deductions that are typically 

withheld from the pay of regular employees.  You will be responsible for payment of all taxes including, 

by way of illustration but not limitation, Federal and State income tax, Social Security tax, and 

Unemployment Insurance taxes and any other taxes or fees as required.  You will not be entitled to any 

fringe benefits, such as unemployment insurance, pension plan or other such benefits that would be 

offered to regular employees. 

You will be paid an hourly rate of $175.00 per hour and invoice the District for your services rendered at 

the end of each month.  Your time will be billed in six (6) minute increments, rounded up to the next 

tenth, with a minimum billing increment of twelve (12) minutes.      

If you agree to the above terms, please sign and return one copy of this letter to the District.  You may 

retain the other copy for your files. 

Bob, I wish you all the best in your future endeavors. I appreciate all of your contributions to the District 

over the years and also your continued support during this transition period.   

Sincerely,        I agree to the above terms 

 

Dennis P. Cafferty       __________________________ 

General Manager       Robert H. Hill 

 

 

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-8-3 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

COMMENDING DIRECTOR CHARLEY WILSON FOR HIS 

DEDICATED SERVICE TO THE SANTA MARGARITA WATER DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, Charley Wilson has provided dedicated service on the Santa Margarita Water District Board 
of Directors since his appointment in early 2000; and, 

WHEREAS, Director Wilson has provided service and leadership to a variety of water and water-related 
organizations and helped to influence water policy to the benefit of the entire State of California; and, 

WHEREAS, during his 19-year tenure Director Wilson has served at various times as the Santa 
Margarita Water District Board President, Chair of the Finance and Administration Committee, Water Quality 
and Innovations Committee and External Affairs Ad Hoc Committee; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Director Wilson served the County of Orange on the Board of the Orange County Local 

Agency Formation Commission for more than 17 years; and, 

WHEREAS, Director Wilson now serves as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Southern 
California Water Coalition providing leadership in developing partnerships between cities, counties, business, 
industry, agriculture and water agencies for the purpose of ensuring adequate, reliable, affordable water in and 
for Southern California and is now leaving public service; and,  

WHEREAS, Director Wilson has resigned his seat on the Board of Directors of the Santa Margarita Water 
District effective August 1, 2019;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the El Toro Water District 
hereby recognizes the significant contributions of Director Wilson and expresses its sincere appreciation for his 
leadership and dedicated service to the citizens of the Santa Margarita Water District, to Orange County, and to 
southern California.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the El Toro Water District this 22nd day of 
August, 2019. 

        __________________________ 
        JOSE F. VERGARA, President 
        El Toro Water District, and the 
        Board of Directors thereof 
(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary 
El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 



 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 19-8-4 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

MODIFYING STANDING AND EXTERNAL 
ORGANIZATION BOARD AND STAFF ASSIGNMENTS 

FOR THE BALANCE OF 2019 
EFFECTIVE AUGUST 22, 2019 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the EL TORO WATER DISTRICT deems it to be in 

the best interest of the District to modify the President’s appointment of Board and Staff to 

Standing and External Organization assignments; and  

WHEREAS, said list of appointments is attached hereto marked Exhibit "A," and made 

part of this Resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the EL 

TORO WATER DISTRICT hereby confirms the adding of Board/Staff to Standing Committee 

and External Organization assignments as listed in Exhibit “A”.  

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 22nd day of August 2019. 

 

  
JOSE F. VERGARA, President 
El Toro Water District and the  
Board of Directors thereof 

(SEAL) 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary 
El Toro Water District and the  
Board of Directors thereof 



 

  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 
) 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 
 
 

 
I, DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the El Toro Water 

District, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 19-8-4 of said Board, and that the same has not been amended or repealed. 

DATED: August 22, 2019 

 

  
 DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary 
 El Toro Water District and of 
 the Board of Directors thereof 
 
(SEAL)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

BOARD/STAFF MEMBER ORGANIZATIONAL AND STANDING COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS – 2019 

 (May August 2019) 

 
ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVE ALTERNATE FREQUENCY 
 

WACO Planning Monin  Vergara Monthly 

WateReuse Vergara  Havens Bi-Monthly 

SOCWA Board Freshley Gaskins Monthly 

SOCWA Finance  Cafferty Freshley Monthly 

ISDOC  Monin Gaskins Monthly 

LAFCO Freshley Gaskins As Required 

JPIA Freshley Gaskins Semi-Annual 

MWDOC Board  Vergara Monin Monthly 

MWDOC Finance Monin Vergara Monthly 

MWDOC Public Affairs Gaskins Havens Monthly 

MWDOC Plan & Ops Freshley Vergara Monthly 

SAC Freshley Gaskins Semi-Annual 

South Co. Watershed Exec Havens Freshley As Required 

South OC Economic Coalition Vergara Gaskins Monthly 

South OC Water Agencies Grp Vergara Monin Bi-Monthly  

 

ETWD COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN ALTERNATE FREQUENCY 

 

Agenda Review Vergara Monin Monthly 

Engineering  Freshley Vergara Monthly (Full Board) 

Finance/Insurance 

Committee (FIC) Monin  Freshley Monthly (Full Board) 

Community Advisory 

Group (CAG)  Gaskins Havens Quarterly 

 

Regional Reclamation 

Committee (RRC) Freshley VergaraGaskins Monthly 

 

Computer Technology Freshley Gaskins Annual/As Required 

Audit Committee Monin Freshley Annual/As Required 

Budget Committee Freshley Monin Annual/As Required 

HR Committee Gaskins Monin Annual/As Required 

WQ Committee Vergara Havens Annual/As Required 

DIRECTORS WILL NOT BE COMPENSATED FOR ATTENDING MEETINGS NOT LISTED UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY THE BOARD PRESIDENT, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF OCWA, 

WACO, CAG, ISDOC quarterly luncheon, MWDOC Quarterly Policy Forum events, MWDOC/Met Directors, MWDOC Elected Officials forum, So Cal Water Committee, City Council 

meetings in the 5 cities we serve, Supervisor/Congressmen meetings in the areas we serve. 

 



 

  

 



 
 

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

August 2019 
 
 

 
 I. OFFICE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 

 

 Attended Human Resources Committee Meeting 

 Attended Meeting with Strategic Planning Consultant 

 Attended Proposed Irvine Lake Emergency Storage Meetings 

 Attended Pre-Construction Meeting with Staff and Recycled Water Retrofits Contractor 

 Attended RRC Meeting 

 Attended SOCWA Board Meeting 

 Attended CAG Meeting 

 Attended Chair/GM Meetings 

 Attended Agenda Review Meeting 

 Attended OCWA Luncheon 

 Attended SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting 

 Attended SOCWA Finance Committee Meeting 

 Attended South County Agencies Meeting 

 Participated on SOCWA Director of Engineering Interview Panel 

 Attending Meeting with Mesa Water District General Manager 

 

II. DOMESTIC AND RECYCLED WATER SALES  

 
Actual domestic sales for the year-to-date as of July 31, 2019 are 659.34 acre-feet. This compares to year-to-date 
budgeted domestic sales of 767.67 acre-feet. The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects a 
decrease of 108.33 acre-feet.  Actual sales are 100.76 acre-feet lower than last year-to-date actual sales for the same 
period.   

 
Actual recycled sales for the year-to-date as of July 31, 2019 are 142.07 acre-feet. This compares to year-to-date 
budgeted recycled sales of 203.30 acre-feet. The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects a decrease 
of 61.23 acre-feet.  Actual sales are 41.25 acre-feet lower than last year-to-date actual sales for the same period.   

 
 



767.67

659.34

(108.33)

203.30

203.30

142.07

(61.23)

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
c
re

 F
e
e
t

F.Y. 2019-2020

POTABLE WATER SALES

Budget

Actual

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
c

re
 F

e
e

t

F.Y. 2019-2020

RECYCLED WATER SALES

Budget

Actual

Year to Date:

Total Budget  
767.67 AF

YTD Budget
767.67 AF

Actual
659.34 AF      

Under Budget
108.33 AF

Year to Date:

Total Budget  
203.30 AF

YTD Budget
203.30 AF

Actual
142.07 AF      

Under Budget
61.23 AF 



ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013

22%

29%

24%

31%

24% 23%

27%

23%

9%

36% 36%

29%
27%

24%

28%
30%

26%

23%

28%

34%

32%

26%

23%23%

26%

16%

20%

29%

10%

20%

11%

29%

23%

28%

22%

17%

20%

25%

17%

23%

25%

23%

38%

43%

24%

46%

25%

18%

24%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Ju
n‐
15

Ju
l‐1

5
Au

g‐
15

Se
pt
‐1
5

O
ct
‐1
5

N
ov

‐1
5

D
ec
‐1
5

Ja
n‐
16

Fe
b‐
16

M
ar
‐1
6

Ap
r‐
16

M
ay
‐1
6

Ju
ne

‐1
6

Ju
ly
‐1
6

Au
g‐
16

Se
pt
‐1
6

O
ct
‐1
6

N
ov

‐1
6

D
ec
‐1
6

Ja
n‐
17

Fe
b‐
17

M
ar
‐1
7

Ap
r‐
17

M
ay
‐1
7

Ju
ne

‐1
7

Ju
ly
‐1
7

Au
g‐
17

Se
pt
‐1
7

O
ct
‐1
7

N
ov

‐1
7

D
ec
‐1
7

Ja
n‐
18

Fe
b‐
19

M
ar
‐1
8

Ap
r‐
18

M
ay
‐1
8

Ju
ne

‐1
8

Ju
ly
‐1
8

Au
g‐
18

Se
pt
‐1
8

O
ct
‐1
8

N
ov

‐1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n‐
19

Fe
b‐
18

M
ar
‐1
9

Ap
r‐
19

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
ne

‐1
9

Ju
ly
‐1
9

TO
TA

L

‐9%` ‐5%



ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013

19%

25%

18%

25%

17%18%
24%

21%

3%

31%
28%

18%
14%

10%
14%

18%16%15%

25%

34%31%

18%

10%9%
14%

2%
6%

17% 11%

4%

25%

10%

17%

10%

2%
5%

12%
8%

13%

23%
20%

37%
40%

12%

39%

15%

4%

15%

3%

4%

6%

6%

7% 5%

4%

3%

7%

5%
9%

11%

12%

14%

13%

12%

10%
9%

3%

1%
1%

8%

13%14%

12%

15%

14%

12%

13%

9%

7%

4%

12%

10%

12%

15%

15%

12%

9%

10%

2%
3%

1%

3%

12%

7%

10%

14%

9%

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%
50%

Ju
n‐
15

Ju
l‐1

5
Au

g‐
15

Se
pt
‐1
5

O
ct
‐1
5

N
ov

‐1
5

D
ec
‐1
5

Ja
n‐
16

Fe
b‐
16

M
ar
‐1
6

Ap
r‐
16

M
ay
‐1
6

Ju
n‐
16

Ju
l‐1

6
Au

g‐
16

Se
pt
‐1
6

O
ct
‐1
6

N
ov

‐1
6

D
ec
‐1
6

Ja
n‐
17

Fe
b‐
17

M
ar
‐1
7

Ap
r‐
17

M
ay
‐1
7

Ju
n‐
17

Ju
l‐1

7
Au

g‐
17

Se
pt
‐1
7

O
ct
‐1
7

N
ov

‐1
7

D
ec
‐1
7

Ja
n‐
18

Fe
b‐
18

M
ar
‐1
8

Ap
r‐
18

M
ay
‐1
8

Ju
n‐
18

Ju
l‐1

8
Au

g‐
18

Se
pt
‐1
8

O
ct
‐1
8

N
ov

‐1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n‐
19

Fe
b‐
19

M
ar
‐1
9

Ap
r‐
19

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n‐
19

Ju
l‐1

9

TO
TA

L 
SA

VI
N
G
S

Potable Water Recycled Water

‐19%

10% 13%

‐18%



Customer Service Activity Report JULY 2019

Regular Service Calls JULY 2019 JULY 2018 Telephone Calls JULY 2019 JULY 2018

Serviceman Dispatched to Read, 

Connect/Disconnect Service 127 59

Change of Service:                               

Connections and Disconnections
157 82

Field Investigations: Billing / Payments & Graph Inquires 283 299

Check for leaks - calls to CS 

Office:(irrigation,meter,street leaks)

Assistance with online payments and 

ETWD's portal (cc, e-checks, other.)
59 93

  Customer Responsible 36 22

  District Responsible 9 4 Variance / Waiver Inquiries 47 48

  None found/other
32 9

Variance / Waiver Requests 

Processed
19 20

High Reads Checked - High Consumption 

(Billing Dept.)

Ordinance Infraction / Water Waste 

Complaints
2 1

   Cust Leaks: _12_   No Leaks: _29_ 41 27

Check Stopped Slowed Meters-Low 

Consumption (Billing) 15 7 Outside Utility Districts
80 97

Re-Check Read 7 9

Phone calls Transfer to other 

Departments within ETWD
110 133

Ordinance Infraction 2 4 Phone calls for the Board of Directors 1 7

Recycled Water 0 0 Recycled Water 0 0

Water Quality:  Taste / Odor / Color  2 4 Water Quality Taste - Odor - Color 2 7

Phone response: __2__  Field response: 

__0_ 2 4 Leaks / Breaks 18 32

Flooding (Hydrant) Meters issued 0 1 Flooding Meter calls (Hydrant) 6 3

Sewer - Odor/Stoppage/ Manhole Covers 3 1 Sewer Problems (odor / spills) 2 7

Meter Box:  Lids / Covers  Replaced 71 17

Meter Box Clean, Digout 19 2
Backflow / Cross Connection 

(questions or yearly testing forms)
3 7

Raised Meter Box 0 0

ETWD facilities inquiries: 

Boxes/Covers/Lids/Hydrants/Pump 

Stations/Graffiti/ "Gen. Maint"
4 7

Trim Bushes / Meter Obstruction 33 40

General Maintenance Response 3 4
Tyco (ADT) Calls                            

(Alarms to ETWD facilities)
0 3

Fire Hydrants:  Hit / Leaks / Caps 0 1 ATT Calls (access to tower sites) 0 2

Pressure(psi) Checks / Reads 2 1 SCE Calls (access to tower sites) 0 4

CSSOV (Angle Meter/Ball Valve/Gate 

Valve/Globe Valve) chk,repair,replaced
7 6

Pager Calls specifically for Pump 

Stations - SCADA
0 0

AMS angle-meter-stop replace/repair 1 0

Bees Removed 2 0

Backflow / Cross Connection 13 0 Payment Extensions 47 82

Fogged Registers 5 1

Delinquent Payment Calls to 

Customer 's prior to shut off per billing 

calendar (automatic courtesy dialer)  
54 21

OMCOP: Old Meter Change - Out Program 1 1

Return Calls from customers left on 

our voice mail system. Ext 500
6 78

Other: (uncommon non-maintenance calls) 0 1 Email Correspondence: 64 68

On-Call After Hrs. CS  Response 19 20
Maintenance Service Order Requests 

(bees, psi, fogged-dirty registers)
1 3

# 48/24 Hr. Door Hangers Hung 146 154
Misc. (other: employment, deliveries, 

sales calls)
39 42

# Locked Off For Non-Pay (Disconnect) 11 6

Removed Meter 1 0

New Meter 15 2

Unread Meters 4 10
Total Field Investigations 629 417 Total Telephone Calls 1004 1146

 

Uncollectible Accounts: Credit Card Payments JULY 2019 JULY 2018

Budget YTD 1,667.00$     1,667.00$    REGULAR 786 $82,838.74 626 $67,050.42

Actual YTD 1,440.00$     (114.00)$      DISCONNECTS





EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

5 / A

RES-3

5 / A

RES-4

5 / A

RES-1

5 / A

RES-2

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A
5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A5 / A

5 / A

R-15

5 / A

R-14

5 / A

RES-6 OUTLET

5 / A

R-13

5 / A

OC-77

5 / A

5 / A

R-11

5 / A

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4 R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

MPR

1 / A

ALISO CREEK RD

EL TORO RD

MICROBIOLOGICAL MONITORING

SAMPLE POINT

# TESTS / RESULT

A = ABSENCE
P = PRESENCE (POSITIVE)

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND
DATA LEGEND

JUNE 2019



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY
I-5  FR

EEW
A

Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

RES-3

mg/L

RES-4

mg/L

RES-1

mg/L

RES-2

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L
mg/L

/          /
mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

R-14

mg/L

RES-6 OUTLET

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

OC-77

mg/L

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4 R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

MPR

mg/L

RES-5

mg/L2.05 2.10 2.14

/          /

/          /

/          /
/          / /          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /
/          / /          /

/          / /          / /          /
/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

2.06

1.48 2.13 2.43

1.80 2.41 3.00
0.95 1.87 2.23

1.58 1.92 2.24

1.32 1.65 1.99

1.41 1.76 1.91

0.57 0.79 0.94

0.41 0.79 1.31

0.33 0.83 1.36

1.09 1.35 1.51
0.76 0.93 1.20

1.22 1.53 1.91 0.91 1.31 1.77 1.31 1.60 1.97
1.60 1.77 2.00

0.99 1.41 1.66

1.03 1.48 1.93

1.05 1.35 1.71

1.82 1.93 2.21
1.63 1.94 2.24

1.45 1.68 1.88

0.91 1.46 1.92
0.31 0.45 0.70

0.30 0.41 0.52

0.35 0.53 0.78

CHLORINE RESIDUAL MONITORING

DATA LEGEND
SAMPLE POINT

MIN / AVG / MAX
mg/L

MCL 4.0 mg/L
MIN 0.2 mg/L

JUNE 2019

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
D

S

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

SITE 3

ppb

ppb

ppb

ppb

SITE 2

ppb

SITE 5

ppb

SITE 7

ppb

SITE 8

SITE 4

SITE 1

ppb

SITE 6

36.4

27.1

34.1

39.3

29.2

26.5

26.7

28.3

DATA LEGEND
SAMPLE POINT

TOTAL
ppb

STAGE 2 TOTAL TRIHALOMETHANES (TTHM) MONITORING

MCL

80
ppb

2ND  QUARTER  2019

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

ppb

ppb

ppb

ppb

ppb

ppb

ppb

ppb

15.5

7.9

12.6

12.5

6.9

10.4

10.8

6.8

SITE 3

SITE 2

SITE 5

SITE 7

SITE 8

SITE 4

SITE 1

SITE 6

DATA LEGEND
SAMPLE POINT

TOTAL
ppb
MCL

60
ppb

STAGE 2 HALOACETIC ACIDS (HAA5) MONITORING
2ND  QUARTER  2019

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND

ND : NONE
DETECTED



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

RES-3

mg/L

RES-4

mg/L

RES-1

mg/L

RES-2

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

RES-6 OUTLET

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-16

R-2

R-5

OC-77

mg/L

MPR

mg/L

mg/L

R-17

RES-5

mg/L0.0090.000 0.006 0.010

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         //         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /
/         /

0.001 0.004 0.006

0.000 0.004 0.006

0.000 0.004 0.006

0.000 0.004 0.008

0.000 0.003 0.005

0.000 0.002 0.004

0.037 0.055 0.068

0.071 0.094 0.111

0.011 0.032 0.048

0.001 0.008 0.014

0.001 0.005 0.010

0.001 0.005 0.006

0.000 0.007 0.010
0.060 0.089 0.128

NITRITE  MONITORING

DATA LEGEND
SAMPLE POINT
MIN / AVG / MAX

mg/L

ACTION  LEVEL
0.03
mg/L
MCL
1.0

mg/L

JUNE 2019

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L
mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

R-14

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

MPR

mg/L

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4

R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

0.73

0.79

0.87

0.74

0.83

0.80

0.79
0.83

0.89

0.92

0.81

0.83

0.90

0.90

0.87

0.88

0.85

0.91

0.81

0.90

FLUORIDE  MONITORING

SAMPLE POINT

TOTAL
mg/L

DATA LEGEND

OPTIMUM LEVEL

0.7 - 1.3
mg/L

JUNE 2019

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



The quality and safety of drinking water in the U.S. is regulated by the federal government through the U.S.

Environmental Protection agency (USEPA).  In California, those standards are enforced by the California

Department of Public Health (CDPH).  Water Quality parameters must meet both primary and secondary

water quality standards as established by the CDPH.

PRIMARY STANDARDS -  are intended to protect public health against substances in the

water that may be harmful to humans if consumed for long periods of time.

SECONDARY STANDARDS -  are to ensure esthetic qualities of water such as taste, odor

or clarity.  Rather than its healthfulness, these standards govern substances that may

influence consumer acceptance of water.

Given that 100% of ETWD's potable water resource is fully treated and delivered by Metropolitan Water 

District of southern California (MWDSC) through an enclosed and protected conveyance system, the majority

of the State and federal primary and secondary source water quality monitoring requirements are performed

by MWDSC.  The District's physical responsibility for water quality monitoring is associated with the distribution

system.  To monitor the distribution system water quality the District utilizes both in house and outside lab

services.  Routine distribution analysis conforming to CDPH requirements is conducted for the following

constituents:

1)  Microbiological - The number of microbiological samples and the frequency of analysis during the month

is based on the population and/or service connections served.  Utilizing a population of

50,000, the CDPH requires that 20 "representative" samples be collected and analyzed

for coliform bacteria.  The objective is to maintain water quality that is absent of coliform

bacteria which is a general indicator for the existence of fecal coliform.

2)  Chlorine  - The chlorine residual monitoring is performed in conjunction with the microbiological 

     Residual monitoring.  The CDPH requirement for treated surface water mandates that the distri-

bution system maintain a "detectable" residual.  The number of and frequency of sampling

is determined utilizing the same formula applied to microbiological requirements.  At a 

minimum, we are obligated to collect and analyze for chlorine residual each time we collect

the representative microbiological samples.  Per EPA Disinfectants & Disinfection Byproduct 

Rule (D/DBP), which was effective January 2002, requires quarterly reporting for all sampling.

3) TTHM & HAA5 The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) published the Stage 2 Disinfectants and

Stage 2 DBPR Disinfection Byproducts Rule (Stage 2 DBPR) on January 4, 2006. The Stage 2 DBPR builds

Compliance on existing regulations by requiring water systems to meet disinfection byproduct (DBP)*

maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) at each monitoring site in the distribution system to

better protect public health.  The Stage 2 DBP rule is intended to reduce potential cancer and

reproductive and developmental health risks from disinfection byproducts (DBPs) in drinking

water, which form when disinfectants are used to control microbial pathogens.

This final rule strengthens public health protection for customers of systems that deliver

disinfected water by requiring such systems to meet maximum contaminant levels as an  

average at each compliance monitoring location (instead of as a system-wide average as in

previous rules) for two groups of DBPs, trihalomethanes (TTHM) and five haloacetic acids (HAA5).

The rule targets systems with the greatest risk and builds incrementally on existing rules.

This regulation will reduce DBP exposure and related potential health risks and provide more

equitable public health protection.  The Stage 2 DBPR is being released simultaneously with the 

Long Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule to address concerns about risk tradeoffs 

between pathogens and DBPs. 

         EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

          MONTHLY POTABLE WATER QUALITY REPORT



The mandatory requirement under the Stage 2 DBP rule, known as an Initial Distribution System 

Evaluation (IDSE) was completed by ETWD in 2008 and a Stage 2 monitoring plan has been 

approved by CDPH.  Full Stage 2 compliance begins in 2012.  The IDSE identified the locations

with high disinfection byproduct concentrations.  These locations will then be used by the  

District as the 8 sampling sites for Stage 2 DBP rule compliance monitoring.  Compliance with 

the maximum contaminant levels for two groups of disinfection byproducts (TTHM and HAA5) 

will be calculated for each monitoring location in the distribution system.  This approach, 

referred to as the locational running annual average (LRAA), differs from current requirements,  

which determine compliance by calculating the running annual average of samples from all   

monitoring locations across the system.  The Stage 2 DBP rule also requires each system to 

determine if they have exceeded an operational evaluation level, which is identified using their 

compliance monitoring results. The operational evaluation level provides an early warning of  

possible future MCL violations, which allows the system to take proactive steps to remain in  

compliance.  A system that exceeds an operational evaluation level is required to review their 

operational practices and submit a report to the state that identifies actions that may be taken  

to mitigate future high DBP levels, particularly those that may jeopardize their compliance with 

the DBP MCLs.

4)  Physical  - Physical Quality analysis is associated with the esthetic qualities of the finished water.

     Quality Primarily, we are performing analysis for taste, odor and Turbidity (Clarity).  In accordance

with CDPH requirements, the District collects a minimum of 15 samples per month.

5)  Nitrites  - Although the chloramine disinfection process has been effective in controlling TTHM levels,

it requires increased monitoring and adjustment as a result of its susceptibility to the 

Nitrification process.  Nitrification is a biological process caused by naturally occurring

ammonia oxidizing bacteria.  Nitrification in chloraminated drinking water can have various

adverse impacts on water quality, the most serious of which is the loss of total chlorine

residual which is required by the CDPH and the subsequent potential to increase bacteria-

iological activity within the finished or treated water system.  MWD has developed an 

effective nitrification monitoring and prevention program which ETWD staff have adopted

and incorporated into the District's daily water quality monitoring and action plan.  The

number and frequency of this type of monitoring is not currently regulated by CDPH.  

Staff monitor the level of nitrites in source water, reservoirs and the distribution system

daily and weekly in conjunction with the microbiological and chlorine sampling program.

A nitrite level of between 0.015 and 0.030 would signal an alert.  > 0.030 would require 

action such as the addition of chlorine to produce a chloramine residual.

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

MONTHLY POTABLE WATER QUALITY ANALYSIS

MONTH: July  YEAR :  2019

CONSTITUENT                INSIDE LAB            OUTSIDE LAB

ANALYSIS MCL NO.    RESULTS NO.   RESULTS

1  Microbiological    Pres/Absence 175(A) Pres/Absence Average

2  Chlorine (ppm)  Detectable Resid 242 Average =  1.24 ppm 

3  TTHM (ppb)       (Stage 2)   0.080 ppb  N/A

3  HAA5   (ppb)       (Stage 2)   0.060 ppb  N/A

4  Physical Quality: RANGE

Turbidity (ppm) 5 NTU 20  0.01 to 0.06

Odor 3 Units 20 ND<1

Color 15 Units 20 ND<5

Temperature No standard 20 69.0°F To 76.0°F

5 Nitrite (Alert/Action level)ppm  0.015 to 0.030 ppm 98  0.000 to 0.680 Res.

To ensure water quality compliance, the District annually performs approximately 8,750 water quality 

analytical evaluations of the samples collected from the distribution system.



Abbreviations:

RES Indicates that the nitrification was isolated to a reservoir and treated

ND None detected

Pres/Absence Presence (P) or Absence (A) related to a positive or negative bacteriological result

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level

NTU Nephelometric Turbidity Units, a measure of the suspended material in the water

ppm Parts per million

ppb Parts per billion

Total Coliform No more than 5% of the monthly samples may be total coliform-positive

N/A Not available



EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

COLLECTION SYSTEM ACTIVITY REPORT
MONTH ENDING: 2019

NUMBER

0

FOOTAGE

CHEMICAL

USED

CHEMICAL

COST COMMENTS:

1,553 36 JARS $612.00

1,553

FOOTAGE

0

FOOTAGE

19,216

24,505

43,721

43,721

FOOTAGE

4,671

4,671

Number 3 MATHIS-WESTLINE-FREEWAY

Number

WATER TANK FILLS  46 46,000

Flow Meter/Sampling

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Private System

Other

Wet Wells

TOTAL

TV INSPECTIONS   COMMENTS:

Outside Laguna Woods Village

COMBINED TOTALS:

ETWD TOTALS:

SANTA MARGARITA TOTALS:

Hot Spots

Private System

  COMMENTS:

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

TOTAL

HYDRO-CLEANING

New World

  COMMENTS:

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

TOTAL

New World

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Other

TOTAL

ROOT CUTTING

ROOT FOAMING

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Private System

Other:  WRP

Outside Laguna Woods Village

JULY

ODOR COMPLAINTS LOCATION, ORIGIN, ACTION: 

Outside Laguna Woods Village



Wednesday, August 14, 2019

Weekly Water Quality System Status
Generated On:8/14/2019 11:02:51 AM

THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA No violations of State or Federal regulations were recorded during the current period.

0.04

100
294

9.8~

5.0*
5.0**

0.04
77
243
15~
ND*

1.8**

1.6**

ND*

13~

315

62
0.04

0.07

64
315

23~

1.7*

2.8**

0.05

100
202
15~

0*

3.2**

1.3

0

1^

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

2
1

582
ND

264
1

1

275

ND

2

300

1

184

ND

3
284

ND

ND

3.2

3.2 0.011

0.011

2.11

2.40

WATER QUALITY INFORMATION LINE: (800) 354-4420
VISIT MWD ON THE WEB AT http://www.mwdh2o.com

*Bromate values are from sample date 8/5/2019

NOTES AND COMMENTS

**Bromate maximum contaminant level is an RAA of 10 µg/L.

~THM values are from sample date 8/6/2019 for Jensen and Weymouth and 7/23/2019 for the other plants.

^One service connection in the Central Pool, OC-53, measured a low chlorine residual of 1.7 mg/L on 8/8/2019.

MWD water quality goals meet or exceed all State and Federal regulations.

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

CASTAIC LAKE
(JENSEN INF)

2

2

2

Tiers 2A & 3B

Tiers 6 & 7

Tiers 3 & 4

Twr. 2

Tier 4

Lwr. Twr.
OOS OOS OOS

2-MIB (ng/L)

(µg/L)



ND = New Development TI = Tenant Improvement  

WILL SERVE REQUEST STATUS REPORT 
(June 2019) 

All projects subject to previously issued Will Serve Letters are either Complete or the Will Serve Letter has Expired 
 (Will Serve Letters Expire One Year from Date of Issuance) 

 

 
Date 

Requested 

 
Applicant Project Description Type Location Status Date 

Issued 

7/17/18 City of Laguna Woods A Place for Paws Dog Park ND 23301 Ridge Route Dr. Issued 7/25/18 

7/17/18 MPVCA Laguna LLC 24022 Calle de la Plata Fire Service  ND 24022 Calle de la Plata Dr. Issued 8/1/18 

11/30/18 Camino Oaks LLC 24191 Paseo de Valencia Fire Service ND 24191 Paseo de Valencia Issued 11/30/18 

3/8/19 Target Corporation Target Mission Viejo Redevelopment ND 24500 Alicia Pkwy. Issued 7/3/19 

       

       

       

       

       

       



EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

UNAUTHORIZED DISCHARGE SUMMARY

 YEAR OF 2019

PREVIOUS 

MAINTENANCE

SPILL VOLUME (PUBLIC)                

Gallons

SPILL VOLUME (PRIVATE)                        

Gallons

CLEANING TV CONTAINED SPILLED CONTAINED SPILLED

January 23, 2019 PUBLIC SEWER
Res. 23566 Los 

Adornos Aliso Viejo
Root Intrusion

Ran root cutter in Public Lateral 

and cut the blockage out.

Tv'd the line and saw it was 

cleared
9 Grass Yard 3 5 

Notified OCEH, RWQCB 9, 

and City of Aliso Viejo

February 2, 2019 PRIVATE SEWER
Res. 23902 Bough 

Ave. Mission Viejo

Toliet Paper 

Blockage 

Collections ran a snake in line 

breaking the blockage. Noticed 

there was a belly in line, a dip in 

line where  material can collect 

causing blockages.

Tv'd the line and saw it was 

cleared that is when the dip in line 

was discovered

9 Grass Yard 1 1
Notified OCEH, RWQCB 9, 

and City of Mission Viejo

March No Spills To Report

April No Spills To Report

May 1, 2019 PUBLIC SEWER
643 Avenida 

Sevilla
Root Intrusion

First ran jetter to try to 

unclog then ran the root 

cutter and broke the clog.

Collections crew went out to 

tv line in morning.
9

Sidewalk and 

Grass area
0 150

Notified OCEH, RWQCB 9 and 

Laguna Woods

June No Spills To Report

July 19, 2019 PRIVATE SEWER

Res. 23956 

Cophagen, Mission 

Viejo

Root Intrusion
Ran the root cutter to clear the 

sewer lateral.

TV'd line again and lateral was 

clear.
9 Inside house 0 0 None, did not spill outside.

LEGEND 3 155 1 1

S.DC  = San Diego Creek RES. =  Residential                               

S.D.    =  Storm Drain C.      =  Commercial     

A.C.   =  Aliso Creek        S.B.   =  Siphon

G.B.   =  Grease Blockage P.F.   =  Power Failure

LOCATIONDATE
SPILL 

TYPE

PUBLIC / 

PRIVATE 

R.S.  =  Rocks

C.W.D. = Calcium Water Deposits

B.P,  =  Broken Pipe

U.W.  =  Untreated  Water

POST-INCIDENT PREVENTIVE 

MEASURES
RWQCB

DISCHARGED 

TO

REGULATORY NOTIFICATION 

AND RESPONSE

IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE 

MEASURES
 REASON



BILLING PERIOD
PEAK 

REDUCTION
PEAK 

INCURRED
BILL      

SAVINGS
NET       

SAVINGS

7/15/2019 ‐ 8/13/2019 69 kw 1026 kw $2,750.17 $770.17

WRP BATTERY STORAGE SYSTEM

MONTHLY REPORT

JULY, 2019





















































ETWD Public Education and Outreach Report 
August 22, 2019 
 
 
The following provides an update on the education and outreach ETWD is developing or 
has completed. 
 

Drought Log  

Customer Service continues to update the drought response log.  This includes phone 
calls, walk-ins and emails regarding water waste complaints and ETWD’s permanent 
mandatory conservation measure inquiries.  There were two water waste complaints for 
the month of July for excessive runoff. 

Messaging/Materials 

The August/September bill message: “September is National Preparedness Month!   
Please visit www.ready.gov for more information on how you can plan ahead for 
disasters.  In an emergency, ETWD will utilize Alert OC, a mass notification system to 
notify customers.  Please sign up for Alert OC today at www.alertoc.org.”  

Laguna Woods Village Television Channel 6 

Director Mike Gaskins will present on LWV TV-6 August 30, 2019.  

Calscape Nursery Pilot Program Update 

Staff has been working with the Calscape Nursery Pilot Committee including Metropolitan 
Water District, California Native Plant Society, WaterNow Alliance, Tree of Life Nursery, 
MNWD, City of Huntington Beach, IRWD, LBCWD, City of Long Beach, Mesa Water, 
MWDOC, City of Newport Beach, City of San Clement, City of San Juan Capistrano, City 
of Santa Ana and SMWD to develop the pilot program over the last few months.  The 
program’s goal is to increase awareness and sales of California Native Plants through 
education at both the nursery and customer levels.  The program is estimated to begin in 
October 2019. The program flyer follows this report. 

Maven’s Notebook 

Maven’s Notebook is a valuable online resource dedicated to California water topics.  The 
daily publication by Chris Austin (The Maven) offers unbiased reporting on California 
water supply and demand, legislation and policy, infrastructure, storage and more.  Since 
2012, Maven’s Notebook has covered important and timely matters that include the 
WaterFix, the Oroville Dam Spillway, and State Water Resources Control Board issues 
and other water topics. 

http://www.ready.gov/
http://www.alertoc.org/


Maven’s Notebook also provides original coverage of meetings and conferences, and 
supplies other informational items gathered from reliable sources on the web.  These 
sources include newspaper articles, editorials, commentaries, blogs, press releases, 
legal analyses, reports and scientific research.   

Currently, there is no charge to use the Maven’s webpage at www.mavensnotebook.com 
or to sign up for her free daily emails or weekly emails.  To sign up, scroll half way down 
the website home page and enter your email address on the right.  Access to the 
California Water Library – A Project of Maven’s Notebook can be found at 
www.cawaterlibrary.net/. 

Maven’s Notebook free benefits include: 

• Breaking news alerts 
• Information and complete reports on major planning and regulatory efforts 
• Updates on state and federal agency activities 
• Verbatim quotes from authorities involved in water debate 
• Monthly calendars providing comprehensive information on water related 

conferences, legislative hearings, workshops, and seminars held throughout 
California 

Maven’s Notebook relies on public support to fund its reporting.  Currently, Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California is a Platinum Sponsor, Laguna Beach County Water 
District is a Silver Sponsor, and Association of California Water Agencies, Mesa Water 
District, Santa Margarita Water District and the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 
are Bronze Sponsors. At the recent MWDOC PAL meeting, the committee voted to 
sponsor the Maven’s Notebook at the $2,500 gold level.  Sponsorships levels are divided 
by Bronze $1,000 - $2,499, Silver $2500 - $4,999, Gold $5,000 - $7,499 and Platinum 
$7,499 – $10,000.  With a sponsorship, agencies will have they name or logo listed on 
the website and linked back to the homepage.  

Community Outreach Events 

Saturday, July 27, 2019 

ETWD staff Steve Wingen, Dominic Bergin and Garth Botha hosted a booth and the 
drinking water trailer at the City of Laguna Woods Dog Park Grand Opening on July 27, 
2019. Director Monin also attended the event.  April with the City of Laguna Woods 
thanked the District for participating and helping make the event a success. 

http://www.mavensnotebook.com/
http://www.cawaterlibrary.net/


 

             

 

Community Event Schedule: 

September 28, 2019 – UC ANR Urban Living Education Expo at the UC ANR South 
Coast Research and Extension Center in Irvine from 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. Event 
promotes better gardening practices to reduce landscape water use and improve the 
water quality within our local watersheds. 

 

Submitted by: Sherri Seitz 8/15/19 



To learn how your nursery can participate, contact 
your local water agency or Kristen Wernick at 
kwernick@cnps.org, 916-738-7617

 Free online nursery staff training on California 
native plants and CCNPro CEU credit  

 Free point of sale materials for California 
natives

 Free marketing for participating nurseries to 
more than 2.4 million people in 27 cities

 Free customer resources for those interested 
in turf replacement and landscape rebates

 Increased sales of California native plants

Increase your plant sales and address the growing demand for 
California native plants by participating in the Calscape Nursery 
Program. This program is a collaboration between the California 
Native Plant Society, the WaterNow Alliance, local cities, water 
agencies, growers, and retail nurseries to increase the availability 
of regionally appropriate species and overall success with natives.

Calscape Nursery 
Program

A new program promoting California native plants

Visit Calscape.org to find 
plants native to your location 

and nearby nurseries!

Free Benefits of the Calscape Nursery Program

mailto:kwernick@cnps.org


  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT  
CONSERVATION PROGRAM  

Monthly 
Status Report 

August 22, 2019 
 
 
REBATE PROGRAMS 
 
The following tables are the current device rebate amounts for MET, MWDOC and 
ETWD for the fiscal year 2019/20 from July 1st through June 30th. 
 
Select device purchases are eligible for rebates while devices meet eligibility 
requirements and while funding lasts.  The rebate process is completed online through 
www.ocwatersmart.com.  Customers without computer access can call 888-376-3314 to 
apply. 
 
1) Residential Rebate Program: 
 

Device MET 
Rebate 

MWDOC 
Grant 

ETWD 
Rebate 

Total Rebate 
(up to) 

High Efficiency Clothes 
Washer 
(CEE tier one or better) 

$85  $115 $200 

Premium High Efficiency 
Toilet (4 liter) 

$40  $60 $100 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (min 30 per home) 

$2 ea  $1 $3 

Smart Irrigation Timer $80  $75 $155 
 

Turf Removal Program 
(up to 5,000 sq ft)* Effective  
2-13-19 

 $3  $3 sq. ft. 

Soil Moisture Sensor 
System 
<1 Acre 
>1 Acre 

 
 

$80 
$35/station 

 
 
 

 
 

$75 

 
 

$155 
$35/station 

Rain Barrels 
Cisterns 
(200 -500 gallon) 
(501-999 gallon) 
(1,000 gallon or more) 

$35 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

 $15 $50 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

Drip Irrigation (per kit and 
up to 5 kits) 

 $90 base 
plus $85 

 $175 per kit 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates.  MWDOC Grant funding 
based on availability. 
 
 
 

http://www.ocwatersmart.com/


  

2) Commercial Plumbing/Irrigation Devices Rebate Program: 
 
Device MET 

Rebate 
MWDOC 
Grant 

ETWD 
Rebate 

Total Rebate 
(up to) 

Premium High 
Efficiency Toilet  
(4 liter) 

$40   $40 

Multi-family 
Premium High 
Efficiency Toilet  
(4 liter) 

$40   $40 

Zero Water/Ultra 
Low Water Urinal 

$200   $200 

Plumbing Flow 
Control Valve 
(min. 10) 

$5   $5 

Smart Irrigation 
Timer (weather based 
or central computer) 

$35/station   $35/station 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (minimum 
quantity of 15) 

$2  $1 $3 

Rotating Nozzles – 
Large Rotary 

$13   $13 

Turf Removal 
Program (up to 50,000 
sq ft)* 

 $3 sq. ft.  $3 sq. ft. 

Drip Irrigation (sq. 
ft.)(maximum 45,000 sq. 
ft) 

 $0.20 sq. 
ft. 

 $0.20 sq. ft. 

Soil Moisture Sensor 
System 

 
$35/station 

   
$35/station 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates. 
Additional commercial rebates available online at ocwatersmart.com.  MWDOC Grant funding 
based on availability. 
 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY PLAN UPDATE (WATER CONSERVATION PLAN) 
 
The District Water Budget-Based Tiered Conservation Rate Structure (WBBTCRS) 
pricing structure is the primary plan that gives customers the incentive needed to be 
efficient. The Plan efforts initially will concentrate on those customers continually in the 
Inefficient and Excessive Tiers (Tiers 3 and 4).  As of July 2019 year-to-date sales, 
residential accounted for 63% of the overall Tier 3 usage and dedicated irrigation 
accounted for 56% of Tier 4 usage. 
 
TOTAL CONSUMPTION COMPARISON TO EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ET) FACTOR 
 
Included in this month’s Conservation Report is a chart comparing the current fiscal year 
2018/19 consumption and ET factor to the fiscal 2017/18 consumption and ET factor. 
The ET factor decreased 4% from July 2018 when compared to July 2019.  There was a 
13% decrease in consumption reflected in July 2019. 



  

 
MWDOC’s—WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS SAVINGS AND 
IMPLEMENTATION REPORT / ETWD’s—WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM 
SAVINGS REPORT 
 
The current MWDOC and ETWD’s Program Savings Reports follow this report. 
MWDOC’s report show all their client agencies current participation levels in water use 
efficiency programs and savings calculations. ETWD’s report show current District 
customer participation in water use efficiency programs along with savings provided in 
acre/feet per year, million gallons per year and avoided water costs based on those 
calculations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By: Sherri Seitz 
Date: August 14, 2019 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2018-2019 331,098 341,819 354,683 253,007 275,853 202,506 172,911 157,696 135,090 184,628 263,218 262,396

2019-2020 287,207

18/19 ET 7.42 6.85 5.21 4.04 3.17 2.07 2.30 2.29 4.09 4.93 4.84 4.67

19/20 ET 7.11

% 87% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

-1.00

1.00

3.00

5.00

7.00

9.00

11.00

13.00

15.00

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

ET
 F

ac
to

r

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Total Consumption Comparison



El Toro Water District
Water Use Efficiency Program Savings

Program
Program 

Start Year
Program/Total 

Years
Avoided Water Use 
Acre Feet/Annual

Avoided Water Use Million 
Gallons/Annual

Avoided Water Costs 
Based on MWDOC  Rate 
($2.16 CCF) Annual

High Efficiency Toilet (HET) 2005 14 43.7 14.2 $41,126
High Efficiency Clothes Washers--Residential 2001 18 22.2 7.2 $20,892
*SoCal Water Smart Commercial Plumbing Fixtures Rebate Program 
(ULFT's, HET's, Urinals, HECW, Cooling Tower Conductivity 
Controllers) 2002 17 44.1 14.4 $41,503
SmarTimer Program--Irrigation Timers 2004 15 182.0 59.3 $171,280
Rotating Nozzles Rebate Program 2007 12 118.4 38.6 $111,464
Turf Removal Program 2010 9 57.7 18.8 $54,255
**Water Smart Landscape Program - Ended 2016 1997 20 242.9 79.2 $228,594
Synthetic Turf Rebate Program-Ended 2011 2007 8 0.9 0.3 $847
***Ultra Low Flush Toilets (ULFT)--Ended 2009 1992 16 193.2 58.0 $167,487
Computer Controlled Irrigation System--Gate 11--Ended 2006 2001 6 8.9 2.9 $8,357
Totals 914.0 297.9 $860,139

* Formerly the Save Water Save a Buck - Commercial Rebate Program
** Formerly the Landscape Performance Certification Program
*** Correction on date and total

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

rev/ss 8/14/2019



Retrofits and Acre-Feet Water Savings for Program Activity

Interventions
Water 

Savings Interventions
Water 

Savings Interventions
Annual Water 

Savings[4]

 Cumulative 
Water 

Savings[4] 

High Efficiency Clothes Washer Program 2001 June-19 227 0.65 2,753 52.56 119,298 4,116                  30,462

Smart Timer Program - Irrigation Timers 2004 June-19 290 4.37 2,456 320.46 25,180 8,488                  55,228

Rotating Nozzles Rebate Program 2007 June-19 62 0.25 3,163 12.65 567,470 2,776                  21,101

Commercial Plumbing Fixture Rebate 
Program 2002 June-19 99 0.34 11,179 197.09 104,952 5,295                  49,655

Industrial Process/Water Savings Incentive 
Program (WSIP) 2006 June-19 0 0.00 3 145.72 34 914 3,831

Turf Removal Program[3] 2010 July-19 11,286 0.13 11,286 8.86 22,404,339 3,137                  16,455

High Efficiency Toilet (HET) Program 2005 June-19 26 0.09 274 11.65 60,377 2,232                  19,284

Water Smart Landscape Program [1] 1997 12,677 10,621                72,668

Home Water Certification Program 2013 312 7.339 15.266
Synthetic Turf Rebate Program 2007 685,438 96                       469

Ultra-Low-Flush-Toilet Programs  [2] 1992 363,926 13,452                162,561

Home Water Surveys [2] 1995 11,867 160                     1,708
Showerhead Replacements [2] 1991 270,604 1,667                  19,083

Total Water Savings All Programs 6               31,114                749             24,626,474         52,960                452,522

(1)  Water Smart Landscape Program participation is based on the number of water meters receiving monthly Irrigation Performance Reports.
(2) Cumulative Water Savings Program To Date totals are from a previous Water Use Efficiency Program Effort.
(3) Turf Removal Interventions are listed as square feet.
[4] Cumulative & annual water savings represents both active program savings and passive savings that continues to be realized due to plumbing code changes over time.

 Overall Program 

Program 
Start Date

Retrofits 
Installed in

Orange County
Water Use Efficiency Programs Savings  

and
Implementation Report

Month Indicated
Program

Current Fiscal Year

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 7/30/2019



Agency FY 12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19  Total 

 Current FY 
Water Savings 

Ac/Ft 
(Cumulative) 

 Cumulative 
Water Savings 

across all 
Fiscal Years 

 15 yr. 
Lifecycle 
Savings 

Ac/Ft 
Brea 93            115          114          76            57           56             54            1,977          1.08 504.50 1,023          
Buena Park 105          106          91            76            54           50             46            1,614          0.77 398.37 835             
East Orange CWD RZ 10            8              8              8              3             1               6              199             0.10 53.92 103             
El Toro WD 134          121          111          65            47           50             40            1,611          0.74 399.83 834             
Fountain Valley 115          102          110          76            65           49             39            2,488          0.71 665.68 1,287          
Garden Grove 190          162          165          251          127        87             71            3,721          1.36 949.60 1,925          
Golden State WC 265          283          359          260          138        156           93            5,264          1.92 1,345.81 2,724          
Huntington Beach 334          295          319          225          180        141           93            8,480          1.78 2,313.64 4,388          
Irvine Ranch WD 1,763       1,664       1,882       1,521       1,373     1,203        889          26,758        17.15 6,434.07 13,845        
La Habra 82            114          87            66            53           48             49            1,424          0.89 349.01 737             
La Palma 34            25            34            29            10           14             7              479             0.15 120.52 248             
Laguna Beach CWD 38            37            39            32            19           20             18            970             0.37 254.06 502             
Mesa Water 114          86            89            113          80           54             42            2,614          0.82 709.08 1,353          
Moulton Niguel WD 442          421          790          688          575        527           357          10,805        6.90 2,562.67 5,591          
Newport Beach 116          92            95            66            61           51             41            2,716          0.90 750.88 1,405          
Orange 218          163          160          124          80           74             56            4,028          1.16 1,102.59 2,084          

 San Juan Capistrano 76            73            92            63            33           33             23            1,515          0.39 392.78 784             
San Clemente 140          94            141          75            70           85             64            2,769          1.29 711.85 1,433          
Santa Margarita WD 553          662          792          466          367        274           214          10,004        4.24 2,480.90 5,176          
Seal Beach 31            29            38            23            9             17             8              627             0.15 163.20 324             
Serrano WD 13            10            26            8              11           8               2              367             0.02 100.12 190             
South Coast WD 89            79            68            43            44           36             29            1,649          0.55 424.46 853             
Trabuco Canyon WD 30            45            47            34            28           22             13            833             0.15 212.34 431             
Tustin 78            59            80            66            44           49             34            1,695          0.63 448.83 877             
Westminster 121          82            109          149          84           65             46            2,697          0.81 697.36 1,396          
Yorba Linda 181          167          156          123          56           67             43            3,862          0.84 1,057.02 1,998          

MWDOC Totals 5,365       5,094       6,002       4,726       3,668     3,237        2,377       101,178      45.86 25,607.17 19,547        

Anaheim 331          285          295          266          213        173           135          10,990        2.39 3,042.09 5,687          
Fullerton 200          186          211          165          107        99             113          3,907          2.32 1,002.33 2,022          
Santa Ana 163          131          132          259          141        124           128          3,223          1.99 810.60 1,668          

Non-MWDOC Totals 694          602          638          690          461        396           376          18,120        6.70 4,855.01 3,501          

Orange County Totals 6,059       5,696       6,640       5,416       4,129     3,633        2,753       119,298      52.56 30,462.18 23,048        

HIGH EFFICIENCY CLOTHES WASHERS INSTALLED BY AGENCY
through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 7/30/2019



Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm.
Brea 9 8 4 0 43 6 20 4 31 4 32 0 33 0 196 80 585.35
Buena Park 3 0 0 0 4 10 7 4 10 7 15 3 17 7 63 51 186.72
East Orange CWD RZ 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 11 1 6 0 1 0 32 1 26.86
El Toro WD 7 2 11 0 8 9 9 17 33 8 29 4 34 0 178 359 2,729.70
Fountain Valley 3 2 4 0 7 10 13 1 33 12 28 12 36 4 155 56 232.40
Garden Grove 5 2 9 0 10 14 13 11 28 0 27 2 36 3 164 43 211.61
Golden State WC 9 49 9 25 39 12 35 16 56 37 88 6 85 15 398 213 980.18
Huntington Beach 18 33 20 35 19 2 42 12 88 94 70 30 105 65 447 363 1,348.19
Irvine Ranch WD 414 135 71 59 67 310 239 207 344 420 416 78 379 105 2,564 2,469 13,162.63
La Habra 4 7 2 0 4 7 3 1 12 7 8 0 19 3 63 47 237.72
La Palma 1 0 2 0 2 0 3 2 1 0 5 0 7 0 22 2 8.38
Laguna Beach CWD 76 2 71 0 86 0 86 1 27 0 11 0 8 0 516 20 272.59
Mesa Water 10 2 15 2 17 28 36 12 149 41 49 0 34 55 401 209 894.01
Moulton Niguel WD 51 74 40 45 46 95 163 100 236 129 284 33 316 64 1,514 898 4,280.63
Newport Beach 242 26 168 75 11 9 28 43 30 12 24 0 21 0 1,083 409 2,941.42
Orange 20 24 13 9 18 31 51 13 69 10 61 13 93 26 439 204 1,095.57

 San Juan Capistrano 14 18 6 11 6 19 20 8 22 8 23 5 20 1 265 131 746.29
San Clemente 26 7 28 2 28 24 26 3 37 13 38 41 36 0 1,125 415 3,015.67
Santa Margarita WD 53 171 64 93 53 321 189 136 326 221 273 220 222 37 1,649 1,629 6,936.47
Seal Beach 1 0 1 36 1 12 2 2,446 2 4 5 0 6 31 18 2,533 6,825.34
Serrano WD 1 0 0 0 4 0 11 2 4 0 8 0 10 0 56 2 18.26
South Coast WD 13 16 8 4 104 73 9 11 7 0 15 2 7 7 300 221 1,312.17
Trabuco Canyon WD 6 0 2 0 6 1 16 50 13 3 20 0 33 0 156 157 1,063.63
Tustin 8 4 9 1 18 14 33 8 33 23 27 1 37 0 207 81 404.72
Westminster 1 1 2 0 13 17 7 1 17 12 22 0 24 0 111 44 232.49
Yorba Linda 20 0 12 5 32 2 61 27 72 71 68 10 74 4 480 197 990.43

MWDOC Totals 1,017 583 571 402 648 1,026 1,123 3,136 1,691 1,137 1,652 460 1,693 427 12,602 10,834 50,739.42

Anaheim 19 10 9 26 7 52 30 34 87 10 66 0 142 73 452 530 2,981.41
Fullerton 9 29 8 0 40 26 32 12 53 7 45 0 77 0 321 199 1,083.63
Santa Ana 8 19 7 8 9 27 22 26 15 3 16 0 24 20 122 120 423.47

Non-MWDOC Totals 36 58 24 34 56 105 84 72 155 20 127 0 243 93 895 849 4,488.51

Orange County Totals 1,053   641      595      436      704      1,131      1,207    3,208    1,846  1,157    1,779 460    1,936 520    13,497  11,683  55,228            

FY18/19FY 12/13 FY17/18

Agency

SMART TIMERS INSTALLED BY AGENCY
 through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

 Cumulative 
Water Savings 

across all Fiscal 
Years 

Total ProgramFY 13/14 FY16/17FY 14/15 FY 15/16

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 7/30/2019



Large Large Large Large Large Large Large

Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm.Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm.
Brea 84 0 0 157 45 0 74 2,484 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 572 2,749 0                 62.74 
Buena Park 53 0 0 248 0 0 45 98 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 509 173 2,535               904.56 
East Orange 30 0 0 221 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 781 0 0                 22.41 
El Toro 56 3,288 0 1,741 28,714 0 730 4,457 0 55 242 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 3,405 46,222 890            1,421.25 
Fountain Valley 0 0 0 107 0 0 222 0 0 0 0 0 85 0 0 0 283 0 795 283 0                 21.86 
Garden Grove 80 0 0 88 50 0 110 0 0 55 98 0 52 0 0 0 0 0 985 299 0                 37.86 
Golden State 192 0 0 583 1,741 0 1,088 0 0 207 6,008 0 161 -495 0 35 259 0 3,644 11,080 0               299.31 
Huntington Beach 120 0 0 798 1,419 0 1,345 2,836 0 149 3,362 0 -37 0 0 0 0 0 3,760 12,526 2,681            1,469.75 
Irvine Ranch 11,010 4,257 0 1,421 632 0 1,989 5,047 0 335 9,511 0 356 -215 0 72 0 0 47,565 94,346 2,004            5,382.59 
La Habra 15 0 0 109 338 0 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 481 1,236 900               404.34 
La Palma 0 0 0 0 0 0 46 505 0 0 2,385 0 33 0 0 0 0 0 89 2,890 0                 38.12 
Laguna Beach 2,948 878 0 2,879 1,971 0 1,390 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,139 2,896 0               361.30 
Mesa Water 361 0 0 229 0 0 166 0 0 113 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 2,066 385 343               217.09 
Moulton Niguel 361 227 0 1,596 4,587 0 5,492 1,441 0 153 5,872 0 893 0 0 713 38 0 13,480 20,553 2,945            1,931.13 
Newport Beach 19,349 6,835 0 460 3,857 0 348 670 0 0 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 46,723 21,413 0            1,856.70 
Orange 245 120 0 304 668 0 631 91 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 3,200 1,072 0               126.33 
San Juan Capistrano 370 0 0 495 737 0 310 593 0 75 123 0 59 0 0 40 1,400 0 5,594 10,252 0               509.09 
San Clemente 415 5,074 0 326 0 0 426 0 0 0 0 0 146 0 0 0 0 0 10,135 7,538 1,343               917.84 
Santa Margarita 389 0 0 1,207 1,513 0 1,820 837 0 15 0 0 224 0 0 30 0 0 16,419 6,921 611               939.56 
Seal Beach 0 0 0 40 5,261 0 0 2,300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 155 7,852 0               159.45 
Serrano 105 0 0 377 0 0 695 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,405 0 0               106.90 
South Coast 70 0 0 4,993 13,717 0 1,421 2,889 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,130 18,870 0               580.71 
Trabuco Canyon 0 0 0 56 0 0 130 0 0 0 4,339 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,086 5,130 0               160.44 
Tustin 329 0 0 408 0 0 317 386 0 65 -341 0 30 0 0 47 0 0 3,448 1,058 0               138.85 
Westminster 0 0 0 54 0 0 73 0 0 105 0 0 50 0 0 42 0 0 556 0 0                 13.41 
Yorba Linda 40 990 0 921 0 0 1,715 0 0 213 0 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 6,115 4,359 500               519.44 

MWDOC Totals 36,622 21,669 0 19,818 65,250 0 20,883 24,634 0 1,556 31,599 0 2,199 -710 0 1,043 1,980 0 196,237 280,103 14,752 18,603.02         

Anaheim 338 0 0 498 712 0 794 5,221 0 147 3,953 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,020 49,799 105            1,569.31 
Fullerton 107 0 0 684 1,196 0 521 7,015 0 65 3,034 0 0 0 0 140 0 0 3,050 11,309 1,484               778.09 
Santa Ana 86 2,533 0 310 0 0 0 1,420 0 0 1,106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 859 5,752 0               150.90 

Non-MWDOC Totals 531 2,533 0 1,492 1,908 0 1,315 13,656 0 212 8,093 0 0 0 0 140 0 0 7,929 66,860 1,589 2,498.29           

Orange County Totals 37,153 24,202 0 21,310 67,158 0 22,198 38,290 0 1,768 39,692 0 2,199 -710 0 1,183 1,980 0 204,166 346,963 16,341 21,101.31         

ROTATING NOZZLES INSTALLED BY AGENCY
 through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

Agency

Total Program  Cumulative Water 
Savings

across all Fiscal 
Years 

Small
FY 18/19

Small
FY 13/14

SmallSmall
FY 15/16

Small
FY 16/17

Small
FY 14/15 FY 17/18

Small

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 7/30/2019



Brea 234 0 10 91 734 242 0 1,607 586
Buena Park 5 23 56 591 133 49 0 2,538 1,363
East Orange CWD RZ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
El Toro WD 0 212 6 268 35 737 717 2,516 750
Fountain Valley 0 0 1 249 0 895 0 1,767 755
Garden Grove 4 1 167 676 410 0 354 2,805 1,812
Golden State WC 0 1 0 1,008 53 93 86 3,044 2,281
Huntington Beach 104 144 7 783 641 10 208 3,172 1,946
Irvine Ranch WD 1,090 451 725 11,100 5,958 1,599 1,000 30,465 9,816
La Habra 0 0 0 340 42 0 0 925 664
La Palma 0 0 0 0 509 0 0 675 159
Laguna Beach CWD 0 27 0 0 0 0 0 446 373
Mesa Water 6 0 79 661 782 0 110 4,364 2,549
Moulton Niguel WD 0 0 3 413 281 506 4,392 6,175 1,194
Newport Beach 0 0 566 0 0 0 1,596 3,430 1,609
Orange 1 271 81 275 2,851 458 532 6,020 2,284
San Juan Capistrano 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 260 457
San Clemente 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 432 444
Santa Margarita WD 0 0 2 90 743 598 699 2,247 376
Seal Beach 0 0 0 0 184 278 0 816 519
Serrano WD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South Coast WD 148 0 382 0 0 0 0 1,320 646
Trabuco Canyon WD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 18
Tustin 0 0 75 358 212 2 408 1,812 1,020
Westminster 1 28 0 146 177 25 0 1,163 1,191
Yorba Linda 1 0 0 226 84 338 0 933 684

MWDOC Totals 1,594 1,172 2,161 17,275 13,829 5,830 10,102 78,943 33,495

Anaheim 165 342 463 3,072 309 1,808 686 16,247 8,494
Fullerton 94 0 178 476 621 274 384 3,436 2,029
Santa Ana 16 17 5 1,293 238 582 7 6,326 5,638

Non-MWDOC Totals 275 359 646 4,841 1,168 2,664 1,077 26,009 16,161

Orange County Totals 1,869 1,531 2,807 22,116 14,997 8,494 11,179 104,952 49,655

[1] Retrofit devices include ULF Toilets and Urinals, High Efficiency Toilets and Urinals, Multi-Family and Multi-Family 4-Liter HETs, Zero Water Urinals, High 
Efficiency Clothes Washers, Cooling Tower Conductivity Controllers, Ph Cooling Tower Conductivity Controllers, Flush Valve Retrofit Kits, Pre-rinse Spray heads, 
Hospital X-Ray Processor Recirculating Systems, Steam Sterilizers, Food Steamers, Water Pressurized Brooms, Laminar Flow Restrictors, and Ice Making 
Machines. 

through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs
COMMERCIAL PLUMBING FIXTURES INSTALLED BY AGENCY[1]

Agency

Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years
FY

13/14
FY

12/13 Totals
FY

14/15
FY

17/18
FY

15/16
FY

16/17
FY

18/19

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 7/30/2019



Agency FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20

Overall 
Program 

Interventions
Annual Water 

Savings[1]
Brea 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Buena Park 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 54
East Orange 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
El Toro 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 9
Fountain Valley 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 23
Garden Grove 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0
Golden State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
Huntington Beach 0 2 0 1 2 0 1 0 0 6 180
Irvine Ranch 1 1 1 0 2 1 1 0 0 10 119
La Habra 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0
La Palma 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Laguna Beach 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mesa Water 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Moulton Niguel 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Newport Beach 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 21
Orange 0 0 0 0 1 2 1 0 0 5 97
San Juan Capistrano 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
San Clemente 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Margarita 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Seal Beach 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Serrano 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South Coast 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 134
Trabuco Canyon 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tustin 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Westminster 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 117
Yorba Linda 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 20

MWDOC Totals 1 3 1 2 9 5 3 3 0 33 779
Anaheim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fullerton 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Ana 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 135

OC Totals 1 3 1 2 10 5 3 3 0 34 914
[1] Acre feet of savings determined during a one year monitoring period.
If monitoring data is not available, the savings estimated in agreement is used.

INDUSTRIAL PROCESS/WATER SAVINGS INCENTIVE PROGRAM
Number of Projects by Agency



Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm.

Brea 5,697 0 71,981 30,617 118,930 404,411 8,354 479 9,853 27,234 3,180 44,733 228,997 516,940                    511.56 
Buena Park 0 0 11,670 1,626 77,127 16,490 3,741 0 4,586 0 1,230 0 98,354 18,116                      80.42 
East Orange 1,964 0 18,312 0 27,844 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48,120 0                      36.80 
El Toro 4,582 0 27,046 221,612 63,546 162,548 13,139 48,019 7,273 42,510 12,856 9,895 137,845 557,302                    518.81 
Fountain Valley 4,252 0 45,583 5,279 65,232 0 3,679 0 8,631 0 5,764 28,700 135,123 41,503                    117.51 
Garden Grove 8,274 0 67,701 22,000 177,408 49,226 11,504 0 4,487 0 0 0 287,921 117,403                    337.17 
Golden State 32,725 8,424 164,507 190,738 310,264 112,937 0 0 0 0 0 48,595 581,902 394,867                    780.47 
Huntington Beach 20,642 0 165,600 58,942 305,420 270,303 9,560 21,534 14,236 6,032 9,539 40,135 562,647 461,872                    775.67 
Irvine Ranch 36,584 76,400 234,905 317,999 782,844 2,675,629 231,483 46,725 86,893 61,037 55,346 203,014 1,472,812 3,427,648                 3,374.41 
La Habra 0 0 14,014 1,818 49,691 72,164 0 0 3,003 0 1,504 0 68,212 90,019                    121.15 
La Palma 0 0 4,884 0 10,257 59,760 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,141 59,760                      53.11 
Laguna Beach 4,586 226 13,647 46,850 47,614 0 3,059 0 589 0 0 0 75,670 48,788                    100.20 
Mesa Water 22,246 0 131,675 33,620 220,815 106,896 4,173 77,033 17,373 77,785 3,023 0 416,749 295,334                    483.49 
Moulton Niguel 14,739 40,741 314,250 1,612,845 889,748 1,059,279 220,749 0 98,271 0 106,574 0 1,661,308 2,840,054                 3,389.00 
Newport Beach 894 0 33,995 65,277 76,675 375,404 2,924 0 5,938 6,499 0 90,403 127,428 539,929                    442.10 
Orange 11,244 0 120,093 281,402 289,990 106,487 12,847 2,366 11,956 0 13,645 1,798 488,697 400,776                    685.96 
San Clemente 18,471 13,908 90,349 1,137 215,249 438,963 4,267 0 33,083 7,098 6,500 0 405,483 474,271                    641.80 
San Juan Capistrano 12,106 0 101,195 32,366 197,290 143,315 2,624 40,748 0 0 0 0 365,415 347,277                    609.46 
Santa Margarita 17,778 48,180 211,198 514,198 534,048 550,420 17,010 28,094 62,706 25,000 24,616 23,198 883,954 1,217,651                 1,551.53 
Seal Beach 0 0 15,178 504 17,349 15,911 1,234 0 752 0 0 0 38,124 16,415                      41.40 
Serrano 2,971 0 41,247 0 127,877 4,403 5,450 0 555 0 4,000 0 182,100 4,403                    134.48 
South Coast 15,162 116,719 84,282 191,853 181,102 128,290 14,967 0 13,319 7,806 7,574 0 332,641 465,387                    641.09 
Trabuco Canyon 2,651 0 14,771 0 42,510 88,272 1,465 0 4,788 0 1,536 0 69,535 110,712                    136.34 
Tustin 1,410 0 71,285 14,137 232,697 33,362 11,173 0 16,926 0 13,189 6,894 356,660 54,393                    287.17 
Westminster 0 0 14,040 34,631 71,833 23,902 11,112 0 10,033 0 5,924 0 112,942 58,533                    118.59 
Yorba Linda 0 0 112,136 12,702 360,279 116,985 19,420 0 9,529 3,696 12,590 12,020 525,303 145,403                    476.30 

MWDOC Totals 238,978 304,598 2,195,544 3,692,153 5,493,639 7,015,357 613,934 264,998 424,780 264,697 288,590 509,385 9,679,083 12,704,756               16,445.98 

Anaheim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0                            -   
Fullerton 0 9,214 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,214                        9.03 
Santa Ana 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0                            -   

Non-MWDOC Totals 0 9,214 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,214 9.03

Orange County Totals 238,978 313,812 2,195,544 3,692,153 5,493,639 7,015,357 613,934 264,998 424,780 264,697 288,590 509,385 9,679,083 12,713,970 16,455

TURF REMOVAL BY AGENCY[1]

[1]Installed device numbers are listed as square feet

through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

 Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years 
Agency

FY 15/16 Total ProgramFY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19



Agency
FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 Total  Cumulative Water 

Savings across all 
Fiscal Years 

Brea 0 38 146 154 4 6 1 457 116.36
Buena Park 0 96 153 112 13 3 0 687 215.26
East Orange CWD RZ 0 13 26 24 0 0 0 86 24.09
El Toro WD 133 218 869 264 12 6 10 2,053 611.87
Fountain Valley 0 41 132 220 7 9 1 833 278.76
Garden Grove 0 63 350 363 7 4 5 1,493 475.09
Golden State WC 2 142 794 512 9 11 5 2,806 877.70
Huntington Beach 0 163 1,190 628 4 3 4 2,908 822.16
Irvine Ranch WD 1,449 810 1,777 2,798 638 239 162 17,310 6,030.62
Laguna Beach CWD 0 45 112 81 1 4 0 392 118.10
La Habra 0 37 94 83 5 1 0 591 215.86
La Palma 0 21 59 52 4 2 4 228 66.18
Mesa Water 0 147 162 162 7 3 3 1,624 650.22
Moulton Niguel WD 0 400 2,497 1,939 49 40 21 5,751 1,345.21
Newport Beach 0 49 168 243 11 6 0 731 208.28
Orange 1 142 978 416 17 10 5 2,194 609.02
San Juan Capistrano 0 35 140 202 3 9 4 536 139.93
San Clemente 0 72 225 246 11 6 10 888 256.29
Santa Margarita WD 0 528 997 1,152 114 34 11 3,354 794.36
Seal Beach 2 17 50 69 -1 0 0 857 421.72
Serrano WD 0 2 40 55 3 0 3 124 28.81
South Coast WD 64 102 398 235 11 7 0 1,028 266.55
Trabuco Canyon WD 0 10 108 169 2 3 2 344 77.50
Tustin 0 64 132 201 12 10 4 1,520 589.95
Westminster 0 35 161 359 3 4 0 1,335 460.36
Yorba Linda WD 0 40 280 379 12 8 2 1,261 388.78

MWDOC Totals 1,651 3,330 12,038 11,118 958 428 257 51,391 16,089.03

Anaheim 0 156 1,188 614 70 19 5 5,889 2,193.20
Fullerton 0 61 293 286 14 9 8 1,072 314.26
Santa Ana 0 33 602 293 20 0 4 2,025 687.71

Non-MWDOC Totals 0 250 2,083 1,193 104 28 17 8,986 3,195.16

Orange County Totals 1,651 3,580 14,121 12,311 1,062 456 274 60,377 19,284.19

HIGH EFFICIENCY TOILETS (HETs) INSTALLED BY AGENCY
through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 7/30/2019

















1 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
PLANNING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

August 5, 2019, 8:30 a.m. 
Conference Room 101 

 
P&O Committee:     Staff:  R. Hunter, K. Seckel, J. Berg, 
Director Yoo Schneider, Chair    H. De La Torre, K. Davanaugh, 
Director Tamaribuchi      K. Hubbard 
Director Dick 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Barbre 
 
 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
PRESENTATION ITEM  
 
1. PRESENTATION ON PUBLIC SAFETY POWER SHUT OFF (PSPS) 

(Approximate Presentation Time:  10 minutes) 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
2. AMENDMENT NO. 8 TO THE SANTIAGO AQUEDUCT COMMISSION (SAC) 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT (JPA) 
 
3. ADOPTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AND WASTEWATER 

MULTI-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN FOR 2019 
 
4. APPROVE $5,000 INCREASE TO ROSENBERG + ASSOCIATES SOLE SOURCE 

CONTRACT 



P&O Committee Meeting  August 5, 2019 
 

2 

DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
5. POTENTIAL MWDOC AND MWDOC MEMBER AGENCY ACTIONS WITH 

RESPECT TO SMALL CHRONICALLY NON-COMPLIANT WATER SYSTEMS IN 
THE STATE 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS (The following items are for informational purposes only – 
background information is included in the packet.  Discussion is not necessary unless a 
Director requests.) 
 
6. PROPOSED 2020 DIEMER WTP SHUTDOWN 
 
7. STATUS REPORTS 

a. Ongoing MWDOC Reliability and Engineering/Planning Projects 
b. WEROC 
c. Water Use Efficiency Projects 

 
8. REVIEW OF ISSUES RELATED TO CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS, WATER USE 

EFFICIENCY, FACILITY AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE, WATER STORAGE, 
WATER QUALITY, CONJUNCTIVE USE PROGRAMS, EDUCATION, DISTRICT 
FACILITIES, and MEMBER-AGENCY RELATIONS 

 
CLOSED SESSION  
 
9. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION.  

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9: One case 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly 

listed for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those 
items designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a 
recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the 
Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the 
District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process 
includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board 
Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 
 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 

modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the 
requested accommodation. 







 

MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
Jointly with the 

PUBLIC AFFAIRS AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE 
August 12, 2019, 8:30 a.m. 

Conference Room 101 
 

Committee: 
Director Dick, Chair    Staff: R. Hunter, K. Seckel, H. Baez, 
Director Thomas     D. Micalizzi, T. Dubuque, T. Baca 
Director McVicker 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Barbre 
  
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire 
Board of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion. 
Each Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated 
alternate committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting 
will be adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with 
those Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the Committee should be made at 
this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take 
immediate action on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to 
the posting of the Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 
18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, 
these public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES 

a. Federal Legislative Report (Barker) 
b. State Legislative Report (BBK) 
c. County Legislative Report (Lewis) 
d. Legal and Regulatory Report (Ackerman) 
e. MWDOC Legislative Matrix 

 

http://www.mwdoc.com/


PAL Committee Meeting August 12, 2019 

2 

 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
2. TRAVEL TO WASHINGTON, DC TO COVER FEDERAL ADVOCACY ISSUES 
 
3. TRAVEL TO SACRAMENTO TO COVER STATE ADVOCACY ISSUES 

 
4. RECOMMENDATION FOR SPONSORSHIP OF MAVEN’S NOTEBOOK 

 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
5. MWDOC’S HOSTING OF DELTA STEWARDSHIP MEETING ON        

SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 
 

6. UPDATE REGARDING THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
(LAFCO) MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEWS 
 

7. SEPTEMEBER 5, 2019 WATER POLICY FORUM & DINNER 
 

8. 2019 OC WATER SUMMIT FINANCIAL RECAP 
 

9. INSPECTION TRIP SCHEDULE 2019-2020 
 

10. EDUCATION PROGRAMS UPDATE 
 
11. PUBLIC AFFAIRS ACTIVITIES REPORT 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
12. REVIEW ISSUES RELATED TO LEGISLATION, OUTREACH, PUBLIC 

INFORMATION ISSUES, AND MET 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, 
may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those items designated for Board action, the 
Committee reviews the items and makes a recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be 
taken by the Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the District Secretary. 
 Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process includes consideration of each agenda item by 
one or more Committees indicated on the Board Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting 
considering an item consequently is advised. 
Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation 
needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, 
at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other 
contact information should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a 
disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide 
the requested accommodation. 



1 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

August 14, 2019, 8:30 a.m. 
Conference Room 101 

 
A&F Committee:     Staff:  R. Hunter, K. Seckel, J. Berg, 
J. Thomas, Chair     H. De La Torre, K. Davanaugh, C. Harris, 
J. Finnegan      H. Chumpitazi 
R. McVicker 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Barbre 
 
 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
1. OPEB PRE-FUNDING TRUST PROGRAM AND PENSION RATE STABILIZATION 

PROGRAM CLIENT REVIEW 
 
PROPOSED BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
2. TREASURER'S REPORT 

a. Revenue/Cash Receipt Report –  July 2019 
b. Disbursement Approval Report for the month of August 2019 
c. Disbursement Ratification Report for the month of July 2019 
d. GM Approved Disbursement Report for the month of July 2019 
e. Water Use Efficiency Projects Cash Flow – July 31, 2019 
f. Consolidated Summary of Cash and Investment – June 2019 
g. OPEB and Pension Trust Fund monthly statement 



A&F Committee Meeting  August 14, 2019 
 

2 

 
3. FINANCIAL REPORT 

a. Draft Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the Period 
ending June 30, 2019 

b. Quarterly Budget Review (deferred to FY 2018-19 Audited Annual Financials) 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
4. DISCUSSION RE POLICY RE PRESIDENT CASTING VOTES TO AGENCIES ON 

BEHALF OF DISTRICT 
 
5. DISCUSSION REGARDING DIRECTOR BARBRE’S REQUEST TO ADD 

SECTIONS TO ADMINISTRATIVE CODE RE MEMBERSHIPS AND SELF 
CERTIFICATION OF NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
6. DISCUSSION REGARDING CALIFORNIA COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL AND 

ECONOMIC BALANCE (CCEEB) MEETING ATTENDANCE 
 
7. DISCUSSION RE COMPLETION OF BUSINESS EXPENSE REPORTS 
 
8. PERSONNEL MANUAL CHANGES 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
9. AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO METROPOLITAN 

AGREEMENTS FOR CYCLIC IN-LIEU DELIVERIES 
 
10. ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES (ACWA) COMMITTEE 

CONSIDERATION FOR 2020/2021 
 
11. ACWA REGION 10 ELECTION 
 
12. VEHICLE PURCHASE FOR WATER LOSS CONTROL STAFF  
 
13. AUTHORIZATION FOR STAFF TO ATTEND PUBLIC RELATIONS SOCIETY OF 

AMERICA INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE OCTOBER 20-22, 2019 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS – (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
14. SEMI-ANNUAL OVERTIME REPORT 
 
15. DIRECTORS ACTIVITIES REPORT 
 
16. DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS 

a. Administration 
b. Finance and Information Technology 

 



A&F Committee Meeting  August 14, 2019 
 

3 

17. MONTHLY WATER USAGE DATA, TIER 2 PROJECTION, AND WATER SUPPLY 
INFORMATION 

 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
18. REVIEW ISSUES REGARDING DISTRICT ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL 

MATTERS, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FINANCE AND INSURANCE 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly 

listed for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those 
items designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a 
recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the 
Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the 
District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process 
includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board 
Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 
 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 

modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the 
requested accommodation. 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
ORANGE COUNTY 

2677 North Main Street, Suite 1050 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 

(714) 640-5100  FAX (714) 640-5139 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, August 14, 2019 
8:15 a.m. 

Planning Commission Hearing Room 
Hall of Administration 
333 W. Santa Ana Blvd 

10 Civic Center Plaza, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

Any member of the public may request to speak on any agenda item at the time that item is being 
considered by the Commission. 

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – COMMISSIONER ALLAN BERNSTEIN

3. OATH OF OFFICE FOR NEW APPOINTMENTS AND TERMS

4. ROLL CALL

5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUPPLEMENTAL COMMUNICATIONS
(Received After Agenda Distribution)

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a.) June 12, 2019 – Regular Commission Meeting

7. PUBLIC COMMENT

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on items not on the
agenda, provided that the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the Commission and that no action
may be taken on an off-agenda item(s) unless authorized by law.

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

a.) Legislative Report
The Commission will receive a report on current and newly introduced legislation of LAFCO 
interest and consider adopting positions on proposed legislation.   

http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/3_OathOfOffice.pdf
http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/6a_Minutes_June_12_2019.pdf
http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/8a_LegReport.pdf


b.) FY 2018-19 Final Comprehensive Quarterly Report 
The Commission will receive the final comprehensive quarterly report for fiscal year 2018-19. 

9. PUBLIC HEARING

None

10. COMMISSION DISCUSSION AND ACTION 

a.) OC LAFCO Reserves and Projections
The Commission will receive a report and discuss the OC LAFCO reserves’ usage, projections 
and policy. 

b.) Proposed Revisions to OC LAFCO Policies and Procedures 
The Commission will consider the proposed revisions, amendments and updates to the OC LAFCO 
Public Records Act Policy and the Retention and Destruction Policy. 

c.) 2019 CALAFCO Update 
The Commission will receive a report on the upcoming nomination and election process for the 
CALAFCO Board of Directors and the potential change in the structure of the Association’s 
membership dues. 

11. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

This is an opportunity for Commissioners to comment on issues not listed on the agenda, provided
that the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the Commission.  No discussion or action may occur
or be taken, except to place the item on a future agenda if approved by Commission majority.

12. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Executive Officer’s report on upcoming events and activities of the Executive Officer since last
meeting.

13. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS & ANNOUNCEMENTS

a.) CALAFCO Annual Conference
The CALAFCO Annual Conference will take place at the Hyatt Regency in Downtown 
Sacramento, CA, October 30 – November 1, 2019. 

b.) Los Alisos Areas 1 and 2 Annexation to Orange County Sanitation District (DA 19-01) – 
Protest Hearing  
The Commission will receive an oral report on the protest hearing for the Los Alisos Areas 1 and 
2 Annexation to Orange County Sanitation District that was held on August 6, 2019. 

14. CLOSED SESSION

None

15. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING

http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/8b_FinalCQReport.pdf
http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/10a_Reserves_Projections.pdf
http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/10b_PoliciesAndProcedures.pdf
http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/10c_CALAFCOUpdate.pdf


NOTICE REGARDING ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE COMMISSION LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE 
LAFCO REGULAR MEETING: 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5 public records that relate to open session agenda items that are distributed to 
a majority of the Commission less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be available to the public at Orange 
County LAFCO offices at 2677 North Main Street, Suite 1050, Santa Ana, CA 92705 during regular business hours.  These 
records when possible will also be made available on the OC LAFCO website at http://www.oclafco.org. 
 
NOTICE: State law requires that a participant in a LAFCO proceeding who has a financial interest in a decision and who 
has made a campaign contribution of more than $250 to any commissioner in the past year must disclose the contribution.  
If you are affected, please notify the Commission’s staff before the hearing.  
 
LAFCO Agendas and supporting documentation are available on the Internet at http://oclafco.org. 

http://www.oclafco.org/
http://www.oclafco.org/


AGENDA  
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WATERSHED MANAGEMENT AREA 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 

Debbie Neev, Chair 
Laguna Beach County Water District 

Saundra Jacobs 
Santa Margarita Water District 

Elaine Gennawey 
City of Laguna Niguel 

Paul Wyatt 
City of Dana Point 

Kay Havens 
El Toro Water District 
Mary Aileen Matheis 

Irvine Ranch Water District 
Bob Whalen 

City of Laguna Beach 
Erica Pezold 

City of Laguna Hills 
Carol Moore 

City of Laguna Woods 
Trish Kelley 

City of Mission Viejo 
Scott Voigts 

City of Lake Forest 
 

Tiffany Ackley, Vice Chair 
City of Aliso Viejo 

Bill Moorhead 
Moulton Niguel Water District 

Megan Yoo Schneider 
Municipal Water District of OC 

Lisa Bartlett 
County of Orange 

Brad McGirr 
City of Rancho Santa Margarita 

TBD 
City of San Clemente 

Derek Reeve 
San Juan Basin Authority 

Doug Erdman 
South Coast Water District 

Rick Erkeneff 
South OC Wastewater Authority 

Ed Mandich 
Trabuco Canyon Water District 

Jack Hunt 
City of San Juan Capistrano 

 

The Watershed Management Area Executive Committee welcomes you to this meeting and 
encourages your participation.   
 

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered.  Except as 
otherwise provided by law, no action shall be taken on any items not appearing in the following 
agenda.  However, items may be taken up in a different sequence.   
 

Any member of the public wishing to speak on non-agenda items under the jurisdiction of the 
Executive Committee may do so during Public Comments (Item 2) after completing a speaker 
request card.  Those wishing to speak on agenda items may do so following the item by 
completing a speaker request card. 
 

All persons addressing the Executive Committee are requested to limit their comments to three 
minutes.   
 

Agenda Materials: www.ocwatersheds.com  

August 8, 2019 
2:30 – 4:30 p.m. 

 
Laguna Niguel Council Chambers 

30111 Crown Valley Parkway 
Laguna Niguel, CA  92677 

Map 

http://www.ocwatersheds.com/
http://g.co/maps/bxv46


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

WELCOME AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
ITEM # 1 INTRODUCTIONS  
  

ITEM # 2 PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS)  
  

ITEM # 3 APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
  

Recommended Action:  Approve the minutes of the June 6, 2019 meeting.  
  

ITEM # 4 PROPOSITION 1 IRWM IMPLEMENTATION GRANT PROJECT SELECTION 

JENNA VOSS, COUNTY OF ORANGE  
  

Recommended Action:  Approve recommended project slate for submittal of a $2.33 
million Proposition 1 Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation 
Grant Pre-Application Package to the California Department of Water Resources for the four 
projects recommended for funding consideration from the IRWM Plan. 

  
ITEM # 5 NORTH/CENTRAL ORANGE COUNTY PROPOSITION 1 IRWM IMPLEMENTATION GRANT 

PROJECT SELECTION  
CHRISTY SUPPES, COUNTY OF ORANGE  

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.  
  

ITEM # 6 REGIONAL PROJECT PLANNING UPDATE: ALISO CREEK WATERSHED 
JENNA VOSS & ANDREW MCGUIRE, COUNTY OF ORANGE   

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.  
 

ITEM # 7 UPDATES ON LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES & WATER RESILIENCY PORTFOLIO   
JENNA VOSS 

  

Recommended Action:  Provide input on the Portfolio development process to staff for 
further participation in Roundtable discussions with State representatives. 

  
ITEM # 8 EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
  

ITEM # 9 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS  
  

ITEM # 10 ADJOURNMENT   
Next meeting date: November 7, 2019 

 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

AGENDA STAFF REPORTS 

 

ITEM # 1. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 

ITEM # 2. PUBLIC COMMENTS, NON-AGENDA TOPICS 
 
Any member of the public wishing to speak on non-agenda items under the jurisdiction of the 
Executive Committee may do so during Public Comments by submitting a completed speaker 
request card to the Committee staff.  Those wishing to speak on agenda items may do so following 
the item by completing a speaker request card. 

All persons addressing the Executive Committee are requested to limit their comments to three 
minutes. 
 

ITEM # 3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

MINUTES OF JUNE 6, 2019 FOR APPROVAL 
 
Date and Location: June 6, 2019 2:30 – 4:30 p.m.  

Laguna Niguel Council Chambers 
30111 Crown Valley Parkway 
Laguna Niguel, CA  92677 

 
**Audio recording for the November 1st meeting is available here. Recording times noted in the minutes 

correspond to that item on the recording. ** 

ITEM # 1 Roll Call/Self-Introductions (Recording: 00:00:15) 

Jack Hunt, Chair, City of San Juan Capistrano 

Debbie Neev, Vice Chair, Laguna Beach County Water District 

Brendan Dugan for Brad McGirr, City of Rancho Santa Margarita 

Bob Whalen, City of Laguna Beach 

Carol Moore, City of Laguna Woods 

Doug Erdman, South Coast Water District 

Ed Mandich, Trabuco Canyon Water District 

Elaine Gennaway, City of Laguna Niguel 

Erica Pezold, City of Laguna Hills 

Kay Havens, El Toro Water District 

Lisa Zawaski for Paul Wyatt, City of Dana Point 

Mary Aileen Matheis, Irvine Ranch Water District 

Megan Yoo Schneider, Municipal Water District of OC 

Norris Brandt for Derek Reeve, San Juan Basin Authority 

Rick Erkeneff, South OC Wastewater Authority 

Saundra F. Jacobs, Santa Margarita Water District 

https://ocgov.box.com/s/utxv6y8mku1m219bleb20do5019d7wst


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

Scott Voigts, City of Lake Forest 

Tiffany Ackley, City of Aliso Viejo 

ITEM # 2 Public Comments (Non-Agenda Items) (Recording: 00:03:31) 

There were no public comments on non-agenda items.  

ITEM # 3 Approval of Minutes (Recording: 00:04:09) 

The minutes of the November 1, 2018 and March 7, 2019 meeting were presented to the Executive 
Committee for approval. 

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes of the November 1, 2018 meeting 

Motion:  Approve minutes   
First/Second:     Saundra F. Jacobs/Debbie Neev 
Abstained:    Bob Whalen, Megan Yoo Schneider, Rick Erkeneff, Kay Havens, Scott Voigts 
Outcome:    Approved unanimously 

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes of the March 7, 2019 meeting 

Motion:  Approve minutes   
First/Second:     Saundra F. Jacobs/Elaine Gennaway 
Abstained:    Lisa Zawaski, Kay Havens 
Outcome:    Approved unanimously 
 
ITEM # 4 Election of Chair and Vice Chair (Recording: 00:08:22) 

Ms. Saundra Jacobs, Santa Margarita Water District, Ms. Megan Yoo Schneider, Municipal Water District of 
OC, and Ms. Carol Moore, City of Laguna Woods comprised the Ad Hoc Committee to select a slate for the 
Executive Committee to approve.  Ms. Debbie Neev, Laguna Beach County Water District was recommended 
as Chair and Ms. Tiffany Ackley, City of Aliso Viejo was recommended as the Vice-Chair for 2019-2021.   

Recommended Action:  Elect Chair and Vice-Chair based upon slate recommendations presented by 
nomination sub-committee. 

Motion:  Approve Chair and Vice-Chair slate as presented by the nomination committee 
First/Second:     Saundra F. Jacobs/ Megan Yoo Schneider 
Abstained:  None  
Outcome:    Approved unanimously 
 
ITEM # 5 Opportunities for Watershed Collaboration:  Mitigation Management (Recording 00:10:12)  
 Jennifer Shook, County of Orange 

Ms. Jennifer Shook, County of Orange, provided an overview of the County Mitigation Program and 
presented opportunities for collaboration between South OC WMA Stakeholders that are interested in 
developing multi-benefit projects.   

Mr. Scott Voigts, asked if the County of Orange works in conjunction with the Irvine Ranch Conservancy.  
Ms. Shook informed Mr. Voigts that the Irvine Ranch Conservancy works closely and has a contract with OC 
Parks.  Currently they have formed a Mitigation Task Force to develop a long-term Countywide strategy at a 
landscape scale.   



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

Recommended Action: Receive and File 
 
ITEM # 6  2019-2021 Proposed Work Plan and Cost Share Budget (Recording: 00:34:13)                                 

Jenna Voss, County of Orange 

Jenna Voss, County of Orange, provided an overview of the work plan and budget for FY 2019-2021.  Ms. Voss 
explained that this time she was bringing the item to Committee for formal approval after presenting the 
budget for input at the March 7, 2019 meeting.   
 
Ms. Saundra Jacobs requested a comparison to the last two-year budget, as there was an increase in the 
amount requested per Member Agency.  Ms. Jenna Voss explained that the primary driver for an increase in 
the annual budget was the project development framework, which is intended to be facilitated through a 
series of meetings to develop or coordinate on projects – this represents implementation of a process 
requested by the Committee through their Strategic Visioning Process.  Additionally, more staff time and 
consultant services are requested to support more intensive IRWM Grant application processes dictated by 
the State Department of Water Resources (DWR).   
 
Mr. Bob Whalen, City of Laguna Beach asked for the success rate of grant approval.  Ms. Jenna Voss explained 
that there have been six prior rounds of grant funding through Proposition 50 and Proposition 84, collectively 
from which the SOCWMA successfully garnered close to $36 million, translating to a total local investment of 
approximately $216 million dollars.   
        
Recommended Action: Approve proposed 2019-2021 Work Plan and Cost-Share Budget. 

 Motion:  Approve proposed FY 2019-2021 work plan and budget 
First/Second:     Megan Yoo Schneider/Scott Voigts 
Abstained:  None  
Outcome:    Approved unanimously 
 
ITEM # 7 Update on Proposition 1 IRWM Grant Process and Approval of Modifications to Executive 

Committee Meeting Schedule for 2019 (Recording: 00:047:09) 
 Jenna Voss, County of Orange 
 
Ms. Jenna Voss, informed the Committee that due to significant delays in releasing final Grant Guidelines, 
posted by DWR April 22, 2019, the Committee meeting dates approved at the November 1, 2018 Committee 
meeting for 2019 no longer align with the grant application schedule.  Ms. Jenna Voss recommended that a 
meeting date in August and meeting date in November be added to accommodate the DWR grant schedule.   
Moreover, Ms. Jenna Voss asked that the September, October and December dates be removed.   
 
Ms. Saundra Jacobs asked why DWR received such a large number of public comments.  Ms. Voss informed 
her that it was due to the CEQA compliance deadline shortening from twelve months to six months.   
 
Chair Jack Hunt, City of San Juan Capistrano thanked Ms. Jenna Voss for her dedication and patience in 
providing him guidance while he was Chair of the Committee.   
 
Recommended Action:  Approve requested modification to the Executive Committee meeting schedule to add 
a meeting on either August 1 or 8, 2019, add a meeting on November 7, 2019, and to remove meetings from 
the calendar scheduled for September 5, 2019 and December 5, 2019 to accommodate the proposition 1 
IRWM Grant schedule. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

 Motion:  Approve adding the August 8, 2019 and November 7, 2019 meeting dates and 
remove the September 5, 2019, October 3, 2019 and December 5, 2019 meeting 
dates. 

First/Second:     Saundra F. Jacobs/Scott Voigts 
Abstained:  None  
Outcome:    Approved unanimously 
 
ITEM # 8 Executive Officer’s Report (Recording: 01:00:03) 
 
Ms. Jenna Voss provided a brief overview of the Disadvantaged Community Water Needs Assessment on 
behalf of Ms. Amanda Carr.  The SDFA assessment concluded and the findings posted on the SOCWMA 
website.  Currently the comments on the Orange County-wide assessment are being addressed, which is 
expected to wrap up late summer.  
 
Ms. Amanda Carr, County of Orange informed the Committee that Governor Newsom issued an Executive 
Order on April 29, 2019 for the Preparation of Water Resilience Portfolio.  It is expected that there will be an 
overlap of the work that has been done through the IRWM process and implementing the Governor’s 
Executive Order.  In the discussions of the Roundtable of Regions and DWR they have addressed ways they 
can participate in the development of the Resiliency Portfolio.   
 
Ms. Carr announced that a response from DWR regarding the approval of the IRWM Plan is expected in late 
June. 
 
Ms. Carr informed the Committee that The South OC Stakeholder Project Framework workshop held May 
16, 2019 was a success, with approximately 40 attendees. The next phase of implementation will be 
watershed-specific; staff proposed piloting this effort on the Aliso Creek Watershed. 
 
Ms. Carr provided an overview of the following legislative items: 

• SB 200:  Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund 

• AB 129/AB223:  Amends the California Safe Drinking Water Act / Requires the SWRCB to develop 
standard testing methodologies for microplastics in drinking water 

• SB332:  Wastewater Treatment – recycled water 

• SB45:  Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020 
 
Mr. Rick Erkeneff, South OC Wastewater Authority asked how interested agencies would be informed of the 
Aliso Creek Watershed project.  Ms. Jenna Voss informed him that at this time a list of interested parties is 
being compiled.  Ms. Voss informed him that these are meant to be working groups so once all the 
interested parties are identified the meeting invites will be sent. Ms. Amanda Carr asked that Executive 
Committee Members reach out to Ms. Jenna Voss if they are interested in participating. 

ITEM # 9 Executive Committee Member Comments (Recording: 01:12:15) 

Ms. Saundra Jacobs thanked Mr. Jack Hunt for his service and guidance during his time as Chair of the 
Executive Committee. 

Ms. Debbie Neev also thanked Mr. Jack Hunt for his service and everyone else for appointing her as the new 
Chair. 

Ms. Megan Yoo Schneider informed the Committee that the Municipal Water District of Orange County has 
a new Director representing Division 3 as of June 5, 2019, his name is Bob McVicker. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

Item #10 Adjournment (Recording: 01:13:51) 

Non-Committee Attendees: 
Brendan Dugan City of Rancho Santa Margarita 
Dave Wheeler City of Laguna Hills 
Denise Erkeneff Surfrider Foundation 
Devin Slaven City of Lake Forest 
Hal Ghafari City of Laguna Niguel 
Hazel McIntosh City of Rancho Santa Margarita 
Jeff Meberg Pacific Marine Mammal Center 
Jennifer Nevius Nevius Consulting LLC & Pacific Marine Mammal Ctr. 
Ken Rosenfield City of Laguna Hills 
Lisa Zawaski City of Dana Point 
Mark Montford Moulton Niguel Water District 
Mark Tettemer Irvine Ranch Water District 
Mary Vondrak City of Laguna Beach 
Moy Yahya City of Aliso Viejo and Laguna Woods 
Peter Chang Pacific Marine Mammal Center 
Richard Schlesinger City of Mission Viejo 
Roger Bütow Clean Water Act 
 

County Staff: 
Amanda Carr, Jenna Voss, Andrew McGuire, and Maria Tamez 

 
Recommended Action:   Approve the minutes of the June 6, 2019 meeting. 
 

ITEM # 4.  PROPOSITION 1 IRWM IMPLEMENTATION GRANT PROJECT SELECTION  
 
The SOCWMA Executive Committee has the authority to select projects prioritized through a local 
stakeholder-driven process for inclusion in IRWM Grant applications to the State Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) in accordance with the 2018 IRWM Plan and the Cooperative Agreement. Ms. Jenna Voss, 
County of Orange, will summarize this responsibility, provide a brief summary of the process (also described 
below), and present on the slate of projects recommended for funding by the stakeholders.  For a summary 
of all prior projects selected and approved for funding, please see Appendix A. 
 
Grant Process Overview 
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) is a collaborative framework for management of all aspects 
of water resources in a region.  IRWM crosses jurisdictional, watershed, and political boundaries; involves 
multiple agencies, stakeholders, and groups; and attempts to address the issues and differing perspectives 
of all the entities involved through mutually beneficial solutions.  IRWM is administered through the DWR. 
Grant funding made available through voter-approved bonds and allotted for the IRWM Program is 
allocated to Funding Areas throughout the state.  South Orange County is in the San Diego Funding Area, 
which was allotted $52.5 million through Proposition 1, approved by the voters in 2014. Of this total, 
approximately $4.3 million will fund water resource implementation projects in South Orange County 
through competitive grant programs (approximately $600,000 additional funds are available for projects 
directly benefitting disadvantaged communities). 
 
As a recognized IRWM Region, the South OC WMA IRWM Group prepared and maintains an IRWM Plan to 
comply with DWR standards for IRWM Grant funding.  The IRWM Plan was updated for Proposition 1, the 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

process for which concluded in mid-2018.  The IRWM Plan has been adopted by all of the Member Agencies, 
and was submitted to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for their review; this review will ensure 
eligibility of SOCWMA projects for Proposition 1 IRWM Grant funding.  To access the 2018 IRWM Plan and to 
see all previously funded projects visit the SOCWMA website/Data Management System 
(http://arcg.is/1WWTmb).  
 
Compared with prior grant rounds through Propositions 50 and 84, the application process includes three 
grant material submittal steps versus one combined submittal, these steps include: 1) preparation and 
submittal of Pre-Application Materials for each project and the project slate overall; 2) a workshop to 
present the proposed project information to DWR and other State agency staff to receive feedback on the 
application before a final application is submitted; and 3) submittal of a final, full application.  Ms. Jenna 
Voss, County of Orange, provided an update to the Committee on the expected schedule and release of 
IRWM Grant funds, and an overview of the revised grant application process at the June 6th Committee 
meeting.  As a reminder, and for Committee member reference prior to the meeting, the grant process 
follows the following course: 
 

 
NOTE: ‘MC’ represents the Management Committee, and ‘EC’ the Executive Committee 
*Call for Projects re-opened due to changes in project eligibility in the final IRWM Grant Guidelines and PSP  

 
Project Review 
During the call for projects, a total of nine projects were submitted for funding consideration that met the 
grant criteria.  An ad hoc of the Management Committee met initially from mid-January to mid-February and 
again in late May 2019 to review and assess the project applications.  The project review process considered 
how well each project met the goals, objectives and strategies of the IRWM Plan, and quantified the relative 
benefit to the SOCWMA.  After the individual merits of each project were assessed and compared to all 
other projects submitted, the ad hoc evaluated the balance of the top-ranked projects to ensure the slate 
demonstrated multiple benefits and a regional perspective. Ms. Voss will further explain this process in her 
presentation; however, Appendix B provides an overview of the project scoring process for reference. For 

Review of Draft 
PSP & 

Guidelines –
Comments to 

DWR

Develop 
Management 

Committee 
(MC) Ad Hoc

Call for 
Projects: 

11/26/18 –
1/14/19 & 

5/3/19 -
5/22/19*

Project 
Eligibility 
Review

MC Ad Hoc 
Review of 
Projects

Stakeholder 
Workshop & 

Recommended 
Slate:

6/26/19

Full MC 
Recommended

Slate:

7/1/19

Final EC 
Approval of 

Project Slate: 
8/8/19

Prepare Pre-
Application 

Materials for 
Submittal

Submit Pre-
Application 
Materials to 

DWR:

9/6/19

Funding Area 
Pre-

Application 
Workshop w/ 

DWR:

9/18/19 

Final 
Application 

Due to DWR: 
Approx. 
12/6/19

DWR Review 
& Proposed 

Funding 
Award

Final Award of 
Grant Funding 

for Projects

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Farcg.is%2F1WWTmb&data=02%7C01%7CJenna.Voss%40ocpw.ocgov.com%7Ce05a386f8d95493c196a08d697507d2d%7Ce4449a56cd3d40baae3225a63deaab3b%7C0%7C0%7C636862769293963496&sdata=KMKL17Z8oPfJ6bZkwym4pjP%2FonSsxg49TpAI8RIXCtQ%3D&reserved=0


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

more information about the process the Ad Hoc took in determining the funding levels shown below, please 
reference Appendix C. 
 
The Management Committee Ad Hoc recommended funding the top four projects shown in the table below; 
the stakeholder recommendation developed at a workshop held June 26, 2019 mirrored that of the 
Management Committee Ad Hoc.  The Management Committee similarly determined that the vetting 
process conducted by the Ad Hoc resulted in an appropriate breakdown of projects and recommended 
funding the top four projects at the same funding levels as the ad hoc and stakeholder group.  The 
Management Committee submits for your recommendation, the following project slate: 
 

Project Title 
Grant Amount 

Requested 

Recommendations 

(A) Ad Hoc 
(B) Management 

Committee 
(C) Stakeholders 

MWDOC: South Orange 
County Irrigation Water Use 

Efficiency Program 

$916,927 $833,002 $833,002 $833,002 

Laguna Beach: Bluebird 
Canyon and Diversion 

Structure Rehab 

$500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 

Pacific Marine Mammal 
Center: Water 

Treatment/Recycling System 

$2,950,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 

Santa Margarita Water 
District: Las Flores Enhanced 

Water Reliability Project 
$500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 

 
Ms. Jenna Voss will provide an overview of the four projects included in the proposed project slate above, 
including a summary of quantifiable benefits provided by the projects.  Project proponents will be in 
attendance to answer additional project-related Committee questions.   
 
Final applications are due to the Department of Water Resources eight (8) weeks after receipt of input on 
the pre-application materials and from the workshop; staff anticipates a due date of early December 2019.  
The proponents of projects approved by the Executive Committee for inclusion in the packet will begin 
construction of the pre-application package immediately following the Executive Committee meeting to 
meet the September 6, 2019 submittal deadline. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve recommended project slate for submittal of a $2.33 million Proposition 1 

Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation Grant Pre-
Application Package to the California Department of Water Resources for the four 
projects recommended for funding consideration from the IRWM Plan. 

 

ITEM # 5.  NORTH/CENTRAL ORANGE COUNTY PROPOSITION 1 IRWM IMPLEMENTATION GRANT 

PROJECT SELECTION  
 
IRWM is a collaborative framework for management of all aspects of water resources in a region that is 
administered by the Department of Water Resources (DWR). Grant funding made available through voter-
approved bonds and allotted for the IRWM Program, allocated to Funding Areas throughout the state.  Only 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

DWR approved Regions within each Funding Area may apply to DWR for IRWM Program funding.  The North 
and Central Orange County Watershed Management Areas (WMAs) are included within the Santa Ana 
Funding Area, which was allotted $63 million through Proposition 1, approved by voters in 2014.  The 
current, sole DWR-approved Region in this funding area is administered by the Santa Ana Watershed Project 
Authority (SAWPA) through the One Water One Watershed (OWOW) Plan.  
 
Following the passage of Proposition 1, North and Central OC stakeholders expressed a desire for a more 
localized, robust planning process than currently available through the SAWPA OWOW Plan, based upon 
water resource needs unique to the North and Central OC WMAs.  The County of Orange, Orange County 
Water District (OCWD), and Orange County Sanitation District (OCSD), took the lead in developing the OC 
Plan for IRWM in North and Central Orange County (the OC Plan), and entered into a MOU establishing the 
three agencies as the Regional Water Management Group (North and Central OC RWMG) for the OC 
Plan.  The OC Plan was completed in March 2018, after nearly two years of stakeholder engagement, and a 
Regional Acceptance Process (RAP) application was submitted to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
in November 2018. The RAP, if approved by DWR, would result in a new IRWM Region for North/Central 
Orange County that could apply for IRWM Grant funds independent from, and in competition with SAWPA. 
 
Concurrent with these efforts, the North and Central OC RWMG entered into discussions with SAWPA 
regarding incorporation of the OC Plan into the OWOW Plan. These discussions ultimately led to the 2019 
Cooperative Agreement for Integrated Regional Water Management Funding in the Santa Funding Area, 
which stipulates that North and Central OC will remain a part of OWOW, rather than continuing with the 
RAP application to become an independent DWR approved Region, and allocates 30% of total IRWM grant 
funding (approximately $12.5 million total from Proposition 1) in the Region to priority projects identified 
through the OC Plan process.  Ms. Christy Suppes, County of Orange, will provide background on the 
development of the aforementioned agreement to allocate IRWM grant funds to North/Central Orange 
County, and an overview of the project selection process recently undertaken in North and Central OC; the 
resultant project list selected for Proposition 1 IRWM Grant Program funding consideration is as follows: 
 

Project Name Project Proponent 

Groundwater Replenishment System Final Expansion (GWRS) Orange County Water District 

Raitt & Myrtle Park City of Santa Ana 

Smartscape OC Coastkeeper 

 
Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 
 

ITEM # 6.  REGIONAL PROJECT PLANNING UPDATE: ALISO CREEK WATERSHED 
  
Ms. Jenna Voss and Mr. Andrew McGuire, County of Orange, will provide an update on the South Orange 
County Project Development Framework (Framework).  As was reiterated at the June 6, 2019 Committee 
meeting, the Framework is a stakeholder-driven process to support implementation of local/regional water 
resource projects that meet the goals of the IRWM Plan and the SOCWMA, an effort resultant from the 
2015-16 Committee Strategic Visioning Process.   
 
Staff recommended and the Management and Executive Committees approved, focusing the pilot 
implementation of the Framework approach on the Aliso Creek Watershed.  The inaugural July 18, 2019 
meeting of the Aliso Creek Watershed Collaboration Group involved almost 50 participants including (but 
not limited to) cities, water agencies, local NGOs, wastewater agencies, resource agencies (e.g. California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife), transportation agencies, mitigation-based interests, and the County.  The 
purpose of these meetings is to define a locally supported project coordination process that balances water 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

resource and habitat priorities in the Aliso Creek Watershed by establishing and maintaining open and 
transparent communication and collaboration between local NGOs, municipal, state, federal, transportation, 
natural resource agencies, and the SOCWMA IRWM Group. The first meeting sought approval by the diverse 
stakeholder group on an approach for establishing goals for project planning in the watershed; a process 
that will continue through October of this year. The meeting report from the July 18, 2019 meeting is 
included as Appendix D for your reference. 
 
Ms. Jenna Voss and Mr. Andrew McGuire will provide an update on the process to date and next steps for 
the Aliso Creek Watershed Collaboration Group over the next few months. 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 
 

ITEM # 7.  UPDATES ON LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES & WATER RESILIENCY PORTFOLIO  
 
Ms. Jenna Voss will provide the Committee an update on the IRWM Roundtable of Regions (Roundtable) - 
an ad hoc group of representatives from IRWM regions around the State – which will be providing input on 
local, regional and state-wide water resource planning priorities at upcoming coordination meetings with 
representatives from the Department of Water Resources and the Natural Resources Agency regarding 
development of a Water Resiliency Portfolio.  
 
The Roundtable provides a forum for people working on IRWM to discuss those interests and to share their 
successes and challenges. It also provides a coordinated mechanism for collaborating on providing input to 
the State on the IRWM program, including developing consensus responses to State agency information 
requests. Per the latter, a Steering Committee of the Roundtable is working with representatives from 
several State agencies to respond to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-10-19 released on April 29, 
2019. 
 
To carry out the Executive Order, three state agencies have been directed to develop a Water Resiliency 
Portfolio, the Natural Resources Agency, Environmental Protection Agency, and the Department of Food and 
Agriculture.  The Natural Resources Agency has been assigned as the lead agency for developing the Water 
Resiliency Portfolio – an effort spearheaded by Nancy Vogel. The Portfolio is to recommend priorities and 
complimentary actions to “ensure safe and dependable water supplies, flood protection and healthy 
waterways for the state’s communities, economy and environment.”  Please find more information on the 
website dedicated to this effort – http://waterresilience.ca.gov/, including a factsheet here. The intention of 
the Portfolio is to build upon past investments in water resource planning to continue building resilience 
against the anticipated impacts of climate change and to achieve multiple objectives across the state 
through a balanced series of planning actions. 
 
Ms. Jenna Voss will provide an update on the effort being undertaken by the Roundtable, collaboration 
efforts with other state-wide groups, and a timeline for Portfolio development for Committee consideration. 
Ms. Jenna Voss will also provide information on other relevant State legislative activity for Committee and 
stakeholder reference. 
 
Recommended Action: Provide input on the Portfolio development process to staff for further participation 
in Roundtable discussions with State representatives.  
 

ITEM # 8.  EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
 

https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/4.29.19-EO-N-10-19-Attested.pdf
http://waterresilience.ca.gov/
http://resources.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Fact-Sheet-on-Water-Resilience-Portfolio-4-29-19.pdf


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

Mr. Grant Sharp, County of Orange, will provide an update on several ongoing projects and efforts within 
the South Orange County Watershed Management Area.   

 

ITEM # 9.  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS  
 
 

ITEM # 10.  ADJOURNMENT 
  
Next meeting date:  November 7, 2019 

 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

Appendix A: Previously Funded IRWM Projects 
 
 
Proposition 50 provided $25,000,000 IRWM Grants to IRWM Regions with compliant IRWM Plans; the South 
OC Watershed Management Area (SOCWMA) IRWM Group received one of these grants.  For Proposition 
84, the State Department of Water Resources (DWR) allocated funds based upon a proportion of land area 
and population across the state, identifying 12 (which later became 13) Funding Areas. The SOCWMA Region 
is located within the San Diego Funding Area, and competes with integrated planning groups in San Diego 
County and southwest Riverside County, amongst which funds are allocated on a competitive basis. Rather 
than potential winners and losers in such a competition, the three planning groups negotiated a 
proportionate share of that funding based on a population and land area formula, with the SOCWMA 
receiving a total of $11.7 million spread over multiple grant cycles.  This agreement was maintained for 
Proposition 1, for which SOCWMA will receive a total of approximately $4.6 million over two rounds.  Prior 
funded projects are summarized below. 
 

Proposition 50 - $25,000,000 

Project Proponent Project 

Municipal Water District of Orange County Water Use Efficiency Program Expansion 

Santa Margarita Water District Canada Gobernadora Multipurpose Basin 

City of Laguna Beach Heisler Park Marine Habitat Protection 

City of San Juan Capistrano 
Recycled Water Transmission System 
Improvements 

City of San Clemente Recycled Water Treatment and Distribution 

County of Orange Aliso Creek Ecosystem Restoration Project 

El Toro Water District Recycled Water System Expansion 

South Coast Water District 
Aliso Creek Urban Runoff Recovery, Reuse, and 
Conservation 

 

Proposition 84 Planning Grant - $457,416 

Project Proponent Project 

County of Orange on behalf of the Watershed 
Management Area 

IRWM Update 

County of Orange on behalf of the Watershed 
Management Area 

Climate Change Plan 

County of Orange on behalf of the Watershed 
Management Area 

Floodplain Management Plan 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority Salt & Nutrient Management Plan 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

San Juan Basin Authority Groundwater Management Plan 

 

Proposition 84 Implementation Grant (Round 1) - $2.3 Million 

Project Proponent Project 

Municipal Water District of Orange County Water Smart Landscape Project 

Trabuco Canyon Water District Shadow Rock Detention Basin 

City of Laguna Beach Rockledge Ocean Protection Project 

 

Proposition 84 Implementation Grant (Round 2) - $1.7 Million 

Project Proponent Project 

Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Comprehensive Landscape Water Use Efficiency 
Program 

Audubon Starr Ranch 
Riparian Invasive Control, Restoration, 
Monitoring and Education 

Irvine Ranch Water District Baker Water Treatment Plant 

South Coast Water District Targeted Water Conservation Program 

 

Proposition 84 2014 Drought - $4.5 Million 

Project Proponent Project 

Moulton Niguel Water District Recycled Water System Expansion 

Santa Margarita Water District Calafia Recycled Water Project 

South Coast Water District Recycled Water System Expansion 

 

2015 Proposition 84 Implementation Grant 

Project Proponent Project 

City of Aliso Viejo Dairy Fork Wetlands 

City of Laguna Niguel Crown Valley Park Channel Improvements 

USDA Forest Service San Juan Aquatic Passage and Improvement 

Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Strategic Turfgrass Removal & Design Assistance 
Program 

Recycled Water Distribution Upgrade South Coast Water District 

  



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

Appendix B: Proposition 1 IRWM Grant Scoring Approach 
 
 
  



Proposition 1 IRWM Grant 
Scoring Approach 2019 

 
 
OVERVIEW 
Based on submitted and reviewed quantified benefits, multiple objectives, cost-
effectiveness and planning considerations (i.e., Ad Hoc considerations) projects received 
points in each IRWM Goal category (Flood Management, Natural Resources, Water Quality, 
and Water Supply Reliability & Efficiency), which were then weighted and summed to create 
a final project score.  The weighting methodology applied to the projects was developed by 
stakeholders in 2013 and updated with the 2018 IRWM Plan. A description of how the 
scoring approach was developed and more in-depth scoring details can be found in Section 
6 and Appendix K of the South Orange County IRWM Plan. An example scoring table 
populated with the maximum points in each category is included below. 
 
 
SCORING APPROACH 
Quantified Benefit 

1. Quantified benefits provided by project proponents 
were reviewed and verified for accuracy. 

2. Quantified benefits from all projects (from this 
round and the previous 2015 Proposition 84 IRWM 
grant funding round) were used to create an upper 
limit of quantified benefits for each IRWM Goal. The 
upper limit reduced the impact of extremely large 
projects on the comparison of smaller projects to 
one another. 

3. Quantified benefits at or above the upper limit 
received the max points for the quantified benefit 
category. 

4. Quantified benefits below the upper limit received points proportional to the upper 
limit quantified benefit. 

 
Multiple Objectives 

1. Project proponents identified the objectives and strategies from the IRWM Plan that 
their project will address; these were reviewed and verified for appropriateness and 
applicability. 

2. Points were awarded for each objective a project will address, based upon the 
weighting for that objective category in the IRWM Plan. 

3. Objectives only applied in IRWM Goal categories where a quantifiable project 
benefit was included. 

 
  

Calculating the quantified 
benefit upper limit: 

 Standard outlier equation 

for calculating the upper 
limit: the 75th percentile 

benefit value + (1.5 x 
the interquartile range 

[IQR]). 
 The IQR is equal to the 

25th percentile benefit 

value subtracted from 
the 75th percentile 

benefit value. 

 

http://arcg.is/1WWTmb


Ad Hoc Considerations 
1. Points (maximum of 10 points) for project cost effectiveness were awarded 

proportionally (inversely) to a cost effectiveness limit established for each IRWM 
goal during the 2015 Proposition 84 IRWM grant funding round. 

2. Points for planning considerations (max of 5 points) were awarded at the discretion 
of the Ad Hoc based on the project’s ability to minimally (1 point), moderately (3), or 
significantly (5) influence the IRWM Goal in regard to research, planning, and issue 
awareness.  

3. Points for cost-effectiveness and planning considerations only applied in IRWM Goal 
categories where a quantifiable project benefit was included. 

 
IRWM Goal 

1. The points received in the three categories (listed above) are summed together to 
provide a score for each applicable IRWM Goal (100 points possible) 

2. The summed IRWM Goal points are then multiplied by the Goal weighting factor to 
create the score for the IRWM Goal 

a. Flood Management (3.4) 
b. Natural Resources (3.3) 
c. Water Quality (4.5)  
d. Water Supply/Reliability (4.3)  

3. The scores for the four IRWM Goals are then added together to produce the final 
project score.  

 
 
EXAMPLE PROJECT SCORING TABLE 
Populated with the maximum points possible in each category. For a project to receive a 
score in all of the IRWM Goal categories, the project would have to provide quantifiable 
benefits in each category.  A project receiving the top score of 1,550 points would have 
provided the greatest quantifiable benefit in each IRWM Goal category of all of the 
submitted projects. 
 

 
Flood 

Management 
Natural 

Resources 
Water 
Quality 

Water Supply, 
Reliability, and 

Efficiency 

Quantified Benefits 69 72.6 68.3 59 

Multiple Objectives 16 12.4 16.7 26 

AD HOC 
Considerations 

10 – Cost Effectiveness 
5 – Planning 

Category Points 100 100 100 100 

IRWM Goal Weighting 3.4 3.3 4.5 4.3 

IRWM Goal Score 340 330 450 430 

Final Project Score 1550 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

Appendix C: Proposition 1 IRWM Grant Funding Allocation Approach 
 
 
  



Proposition 1 IRWM Grant  
Funding Allocation Approach 2019 

 
 
Approach and Key Considerations (also see the example below for each step): 

1. Identify the total amount of grant funding available for Orange County area 
2. Deduct the Administrative Fee(s) (5-10%) to obtain total grant funds available for 

projects (administrative fees are applied for management of the grant, after award) 
3. Based on the projects’ weighted scores, identify the top projects  
4. Divide the total grant funds available by the sum of the top projects’ weighted 

scores to obtain the funding allocation per point 
5. Multiply the project weighted score by funding allocation per point to calculate the 

initial allocation for each project 
6. Evaluate the results for the following scenarios and adjust as needed: 

o (If applicable) apply an established minimum threshold (e.g., $500,000) so 
that the grant award accounts for the administrative costs through the life of 
the grant (these costs should not exceed 10% of the total grant award) 

o If initial allocation for project is significantly less than funds requested, 
discuss amount with project proponent to determine impact and/or viability 
of the project moving forward  

o If initial allocation for project is greater than funds requested, cap allocation 
at requested amount  

7. Based on the results of Step 6, adjust the allocations as needed and/or potentially 
fund other projects – determine the final recommended grant funding allocations. If 
there is grant funding available after this adjustment, the money may be able to be 
rolled into the next round of funding (if applicable) or reallocated amongst the final 
recommended slate of projects. 

 
8. Ensure that the project portfolio is balanced (addresses a wide range of project 

benefits) so that it is competitive. For example, if Project B was not funded, the 
portfolio would still be balanced amongst the range of benefits. 

 
Project Flood Natural Resources Water Quality Water Supply/ Reliability/ 

Water Use Efficiency 
D X  X X 
A    X 
C  X X  
B    X 

 
 
 
 
 



Example (see the corresponding narrative above): 
1. Total amount of grant funding available for OC area $2,000,000 
2. Grant Funding Available for OC - Admin Fee (5%) $1,900,000 
3. Identification of the top projects 

Rank Project Weighted Score 
1 D 450 
2 A 375 
3 C 300 
4 B 250 

Total Score 1,375 
4. Funding Allocation/Point = $1,900,000/1,375 $1,381.82 
5. Initial allocation per project 

Project Calculation 
D 450*$1,381.82 =   $621,818 
A 375*$1,381.82 =   $518,182 
C 300*$1,381.82 =   $414,545 
B 250*$1,381.82 =   $345,455 

6. Determine if adjustments are to the initial grant allocations area needed  

Project Funds Requested Initial 
Allocation 

D $900,000 $621,818 
A $510,000 $518,182 
C $600,000 $414,545 
B $2,000,000 $345,455 

7. Determine final recommended grant allocations 
Project Initial Allocation Final Allocation 

D $621,818 $621,818 
Project accepted lower amount 

A $518,182 $510,000 
Funding capped at requested amount 

C 
$414,545 $500,000 

Project was funded at minimum threshold 

B 
Project was not included in final slate – 

could not accept amount significantly lower 
than the requested amount 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
August 8, 2019 

Appendix D: Aliso Creek Watershed Collaboration Group Meeting Report 
 
 
 
 



   
 
MEETING REPORT  PAGE 1 

MEETING REPORT 
Aliso Creek Watershed Collaboration Group Meeting #1 

Date: July 18, 2019  

Time: 9:00 AM – 11:00 AM 

Location: Laguna Hills Community Center, 25555 Alicia Parkway, Laguna Hills, CA 92653 

Facilitators: Darren Haver (University of California Cooperative Extension), Chad Praul (Environmental Incentives) 

MEETING PURPOSE & OBJECTIVE 

Purpose:  Define a locally supported project coordination process that balances water resource and habitat priorities 

in the Aliso Creek Watershed by establishing and maintaining open and transparent communication and 

collaboration between local NGOs, municipal, state, federal, transportation, natural resource agencies, and the 

SOCWMA IRWM Group. 
 

Objectives 

▪ Identify and start to build agreement on goals for the Aliso Creek Watershed 

▪ Agree on the planning approach and process for the Aliso Creek Watershed 

o The Open Standards for the Practice of Conservation were recommended 

SUPPORT FOR DECISIONS 

The level of the group’s support was signaled by thumb polling where thumbs up meant that the person 

can support the idea, thumb sideways indicated a need to speak, and thumb down meant the person 

cannot support the idea. Results are shown in italics for each decision. 

1. Meeting roles & norms: The roles focused on three types of organization roles and common 

behavior to focus on objectives and moving forward, listening with an open mind and attacking 

problems rather than people. The norms focused on consistent organizational representation, 

agenda/meeting report timing, need for meeting prep and follow up effort, and signaling level of 

support. These roles and norms were supported with a large majority of the 42 participants, 2 abstentions and 

no opposition. 

2. Use of Open Standards: The use of results chains and valuable components of the Open Standards 

for the Practice of Conservation to provide a vision and tell the story of the Aliso watershed program 

was supported by a large majority of the 42 participants with a couple of abstentions and no opposition.  

3. Organization commitment to process: Participants were asked to quickly signal their level of 

commitment at the end of the meeting, where 5= contribute no matter what it takes, 3= I’m fairly sure 

my organization is in for the duration and 1= I don’t think my organization needs to be involved. The 

large majority of 42 participants signaled a 5 while some signaled at a 4 or 3 level of commitment.  

ACTION ITEMS 

RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
DUE DATE DESCRIPTION 

 

All participants 
August 1 

Identify organization representative, contact information, and availability 

for the August 29th meeting of the Aliso Creek Watershed Collaboration 

Group by responding to this email.  

Andy & Jenna July/August Plan logistics and manage invitations for meeting #2  

Darren & Chad August  Prepare Desired Outcome proposals and meeting materials for meeting #2 

*Action items for all participants will be noted in bold text for reference 

http://cmp-openstandards.org/


 
 
MEETING REPORT  PAGE 2 

KEY DISCUSSION POINTS 

This section reflects the major points contributed by participants rather than the content from presenters. 

See meeting materials for presenter content. Additional details of these comments and smaller points 

from participants have been captured in the facilitators’ individual notes for use in the Aliso Creek 

Watershed Collaboration Group (Aliso Group) process.  

Aliso Group Process & Participation 

▪ Amanda Carr, Deputy Director of OC Public Works noted (1) the USACE project is no longer 

proceeding as there was not local interest in that approach, (2) the County is serving the 

SOCWMA Executive committee and (3) the County is an equal stakeholder in the room rather 

than the lead agency. 

▪ There are valuable special studies that have already been done and there is a need to inventory 

what is already known about the Aliso Creek Watershed. 

▪ Not all agencies that have a say are present.  It was stressed that all stakeholders should be 

invited into the process to ensure buy-in and that we are at the beginning of a what could be a 

long and ongoing process. Particularly the County’s 5th Supervisorial District should be 

represented. 

▪ A participant noted that a lead agency for projects and environmental assessments (EIS/EIR) will 

be needed.  

▪ It was also noted that when considering project planning and budget, the group should consider 

revenues from stormwater harvesting and property values post ecosystem restoration. 

▪ Members of the Aliso Watershed Collaboration Group can both participate in this group and 

work on other Aliso Creek Watershed projects for which this group is not involved, or is 

included on an update basis only.  

Findings: Desired Outcome Activity  

▪ The desired outcome concepts created by attendees roughly fell into five categories: 

▫ Comprehensive Ecosystem Restoration: reestablishing ecosystem function, native 

biodiversity, removing anthropogenic stress and barriers to fish passage, reduce fuels, 

restoring and creating habitat (including addressing gaps between mitigation sites) 

▫ Base of the Watershed – Coastal Uses: monitoring the coastal receiving water, climate 

resiliency, estuary conditions achieving fishable/swimmable, and berm monitoring 

▫ Stream Channel Morphology: restore natural hydraulic function (reduce incising, erosion, 

peak wet weather flows), restore habitat and eliminate unnatural dry weather flows. 

▫ Natural Dry Weather Flows: wetland enhancement and reduce dry weather flows 

(especially to estuary) 

▫ Governance and Administration: development of a process that involves the entire 

community, uses science appropriately, has a clear vision for the watershed, finds a lead 

agency and has a plan to obtain funding. 

▪ Other desired outcomes included: protection of existing infrastructure and climate change 

resiliency. 

▪ The activity sparked discussion on restoration scope and scale for the Aliso Creek Watershed; 

whether there should be one large vision for the entire watershed or address individual issues 

through a program of individual projects.  Facilitators expressed that one aspect of a results 

chain is to define the scope and scale of the program.  The next meeting will allow the group to 

decide the scope and scale of the Aliso Creek Watershed program. 

▪ During development of desired outcomes the group should keep in mind that the Coastal 

Treatment Plant can pull dry weather flows from Aliso Creek and that projects should not affect 

the plant’s ability to pull water. 

  



 
 
MEETING REPORT  PAGE 3 

MEETING ATTENDEES 

Mary Vondrak (City of Laguna Beach), Emerich Hlava (Concerned Citizen), Michael Beanan (Laguna 

Blue Belt Foundation), Jennifer Shook (OCPW), Leslie Hill (OCTA), Charles Baker (Cal Trans), Tracy 

Ingebrigtsen (OCPW), Amanda Carr (OCPW), Grant Sharp (OCPW), Ed Almanza (Laguna Ocean 

Foundation), Sandra Jacobson (Cal Trout), Mary Larson (CDFW), Jennifer Turner (CDFW), Simona 

Altman (CDFW), Gail Sevrens (CDFW), Joe Ames (Mission Viejo), Bill Griffin (City of Laguna Woods), 

Steve Dishon (SCWD), Rick Erkeneff (SCWD/SOCWA/Surfrider), Samantha Pilon (OCPW), Jim Burror 

(SOCWA), Roger Butow (Clean Water Now), Michael Whipple (Orange Coast Watershed Protection 

Center), Josie Bennett (Laguna Canyon Foundation), Hallie Jones (Laguna Canyon Foundation), Cindy 

Rivers (OCPW), Kris Taniguchi-Quan (SCCWRP), Penny Lew (OCPW/OC Flood), Hal Ghafari (City of 

Laguna Niguel), Drew Atwater (MNWD), Mark Mount (MNWD), Natalia Gaerlan (OC Parks), Robin 

Lamont (OC Parks), Susan Brodeur (OC Parks) , Christy Suppes (OCPW), Eric Smalstig (Geosyntec), Moy 

Yahya (Aliso Viejo), Hasan Nouri (Fluvial Tech), Jenna Voss and Andy McGuire (OCPW); Avery 

Blackwell (Geosyntec), Lisa Austin (Geosyntec); Chad Praul (Environmental Incentives); Darren Haver 

(UCCE) 

MEETING MATERIALS 

▪ Meeting presentation: PDF attached to email   

▪ Open Standards Booklet: PDF attached to email 

▪ Desired Outcome Concepts: PDFs attached to email 

AGENDA (REPEATED FOR CONTEXT) 

Time Description Lead & Support 

9:00 

Meeting Introduction & Norms 

• Introduction round robin 

• Discuss & agree on group norms and ground rules 

Lead: Darren 

9:20 

Approach & Process for Planning Aliso Creek Watershed Projects 

• Understand Results Chains  

• Determine level of support for using the Open Standards for 

Conservation  

Lead: Chad 

9:50 

Activity: Develop Supported Goals for Aliso Creek Watershed 

• Respond to an initial set of goals for the watershed 

• Suggest missing goals that are essential 

• Work toward a manageable number of SMART goals 

Lead: Darren 

Support: Chad 

10:50 
Next Steps 

• Understand timeframes for next meeting and meeting report 
Lead: Chad 

11:00 Adjourn  

 



 
 
 

 
 

Mailing Address 
 

P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 
 
 
Meeting Location 
 

MWDOC/OCWD 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
 
(714) 963-3058 
(714) 964-5930 fax 
 
www.mwdoc.com/isdoc 
 
 
 

Executive Committee 
 
President  
Hon. Saundra Jacobs  
Santa Margarita Water District  
 
1st Vice President  
Hon. Mark Monin 
El Toro Water District  
 
2nd Vice President  
Hon. Arlene Schafer 
Costa Mesa Sanitary District 
 
3rd Vice President  
Hon. Mary Aileen Matheis 
Irvine Ranch Water District 
 
Secretary 
Hon. William “Bill” Green 
South Coast Water District  
 
Treasurer 
Hon. Joan C. Finnegan 
Municipal Water District of  
Orange County 
 
Immediate Past President 
Hon. James Fisler 
Mesa Water District  
 
Staff Administration 
 
Heather Baez  
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County 
 
Christina Hernandez  
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County  
 
 

Executive Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, August 6, 2019 

7:30 a.m. 
Municipal Water District of Orange County, Conference Room 101 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

I. Welcome, Introductions  – 7:30 am 
[Please silence cell phones] 

II. Approval of Minutes – 7:35 am 
• Consider approval of the minutes for the July 2, 2019 meeting. 

III. Public Comments on items not on the agenda- 7:40 am 
IV. New Business – 7:45 am 

• OA Report by Kelly Hubbard, MWDOC 
V. Treasurer’s Report – Joan Finnegan – 7:55 am 

• No July report. 
VI. CSDA Report –Arlene Schafer/Bill Nelson – 8:00 am 

• Receive, discuss and file the CSDA Report 
VII. LAFCO Report –Jim Fisler– 8:05 am 

• Receive, discuss and file the LAFCO report 
VIII. ACWA Report – Saundra Jacobs – 8:10 am 

• Receive, discuss and file the ACWA report 
IX. OCCOG Report – Mike Schaefer – 8:15 am 

•  Receive, discuss and file OCCOG report 
• Alternate 

X. Subcommittee Reports – 8:20 am  
• Programs (Mark Monin) 

o Discuss speaker for October 24, 2019 quarterly membership 
meeting. 

• Membership (Arlene Schafer) 
• Legislative (Mary Aileen Matheis) 

o Discuss and consider taking action on proposed legislation of 
interest to Special Districts. 

XI. Adjourn – 8:30 am 
Next Executive Committee Meeting:  Tuesday, September 3, 2019 
Next ISDOC Quarterly Meeting:  October 24, 2019 

 



1 
 

 
 

ISDOC Executive Committee 
July 2, 2019 

 
Minutes 

 
I. Welcome 

President Saundra Jacobs called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
Saundra Jacobs, President (SMWD) 
Mark Monin, 1st Vice President (ETWD) 
Arlene Schafer, 2nd Vice President (CMSD) 
Bill Green, Secretary (SCWD) 
Jim Fisler, Past President (Mesa WD/LAFCO) 

 

Others Present: 
 

Mike Gaskins (ETWD) 
Stacy Taylor (Mesa WD) 
Bill Nelson (OCCD/CSDA) 
Mike Schaefer (CMSD) 
Carolyn Emery (LAFCO) 
Greg Mills (Serrano WD) 
Heather Baez (MWDOC) 
Christina Hernandez (MWDOC) 
Jody Brennan (SCWD) 
 

II. Minutes 
 

1. The minutes of the May 14, 2019 and June 4, 2019 meeting were reviewed.  Upon a motion 
by Mark Monin and second by Arlene Schafer, the minutes were unanimously approved. 
 

III. Public Comments 
 
None 

 
IV. Treasurer’s Report 

 



2 
 

1. There was no report as Treasurer Joan Finnegan was absent.  Saundra Jacobs provided an 
update on the new account to the membership at the recent Quarterly meeting and will 
bring a report of the new account to the August Executive Committee meeting. 

 
V. CSDA Report 

 
1. Bill Nelson reported on the following CSDA activities: 

a. 2019 CSDA Annual Conference will be held in Anaheim from September 25 – 28, 
2019. 

b. Electronic ballot voting is currently open for CSDA Board of Directors Seat B.  The 
deadline to vote is August 9 and ballots will be counted and verified on August 
13. 

c. CSDA Award Nominations are being accepted through July 17 and will be 
presented at the September Conference. 
 

VI. LAFCO Report 
 

1. Jim Fisler reported there was no OC LAFCO meeting in July. The next meeting is scheduled 
for August 14, 2109.  Ballots for the Regular Special District and Alternate Special District 
seats are due by July 19 at 3:00 p.m. and the oath of office for the newly elected seats will 
be conducted at the August 14 meeting. 

 
VII. ACWA Report 

 
1. Saundra Jacobs and Stacy Taylor reported on the following ACWA activities: 

a. Communications Committee recently held a successful tour and business 
meeting. 

b. ACWA Region 10 Board election is coming up. 
c. July 30 will be the ACWA Region 10 event at the Arroyo Trabuco Golf Course. 
d. The presentations from the ACWA Spring conference are now available on their 

website. 
 

VIII. OCCOG Report 
 

1. Mike Schaefer reported the June meeting did not have a quorum, so the items were 
moved to the July meeting. He asked for consideration of a OCCOG 2nd Alternate (Joan 
Finnegan is the Alternate).  President Saundra Jacobs formally appointed Mark Monin to 
be the 2nd Alternate to OCCOG.  OCCOG meetings on the 4th Thursday of the month. 

 
IX. Subcommittee Reports 

 
1. Programs: Mark Monin reported on the 2019 ISDOC Quarterly Luncheons as follows: 

a. June 27, 2019 – speaker Sanjay Guar, Raftelis and candidate forum were well 
received. 

b. October 24, 2019 – waiting to confirm the speaker will be Supervisor Bartlett.  
Discussion of topics for presentation were discussed.   



3 
 

c. Future speaker may include Assemblywoman Cottie Petrie-Norris who has 
expressed an interest.  Due to legislative activities, her presentation would need 
to be in the month of October. 

2. Membership: None 
3. Legislative Update:  

a. AB 1752 (Petri-Norris) specific to South Coast Water District’s Doheny Ocean 
Desalination Project allowing an extension of a sunset date for combined use of 
an SFR loan and Prop. 1 grant funds was discussed.  Motion was made by Arlene 
Schafer, seconded by Mark Monin to support AB 1752.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

b. Heather Baez provided an update on ACA 1 and SB 13. 
 

X. Committee Comments  
 

1. Status update on the LAFCO dues and scholarship items.  The Scholarship Committee had 
a conference call earlier this year, but the item was put on hold while the available 
scholarship funds were still restricted in the old bank accounts.  Criteria for scholarship is 
off hold.  Goal would be to have criteria developed so funds could be available for the 
September meeting.  The LAFCO Dues Committee will reconvene in August/Sept.  

 
XI. Adjourn  

 
2. The meeting adjourned at 8:27 and the next meeting will be held on August 6, 2019 at 

7:30 am.  
 
 



 AGENDA 
 

Friday, August 2, 2019 
7:30 a.m. - 9:00 a.m.  

Doors open at 7:00 a.m. 
 

OCWD/MWDOC JOINT BOARD ROOM 
18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 
Announcements & Introductions 
 

• Jim Atkinson, Mesa Water District 
  

Program: The Challenges of Retailers 

 

• Moderator: Paul Shoenberger, General Manager, Mesa Water 
District 

• Paul Cook, General Manager, Irvine Ranch Water District  

• Dan Ferons, General Manager, Santa Margarita Water District 

• Marc Marcantonio, General Manager, Yorba Linda Water District 

• Meg McWade, Director of Public Works, City of Fullerton 

• Ken Vecchiarelli, General Manager, Golden State Water Company 

 
Adjourn 
 
 

………………………………………..………….. 
 

 

 

Next WACO Meeting 
 

Friday, September 6, 7:30 a.m. @ OCWD/MWDOC Joint Boardroom  
 
Next WACO Planning Committee Meeting 
 
Tuesday, August 20, 7:30 a.m. @ MWDOC 101 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

    

Mailing Address 
P.O. Box 8300 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
Meeting Location 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
(714) 378-3200 
(714) 963-0291 fax 
 
www.ocwd.com/news-events/events/waco 
www.mwdoc.com/waco 
 
 
Officers 
 
Chair 
Hon. Jim Atkinson 
Mesa Water District 
 
Vice Chair 
Hon. Cathy Green 
Orange County Water District 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
 
Alicia Dunkin 
Orange County Water District 
 
Heather Baez 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stay Connected with WACO on  
Facebook, Twitter, and YouTube! 
 

      

  
 

  
 

/orangecountywater 
 
 

@waco_h2o 
 
 

/orangecountywater 

https://www.facebook.com/pages/Water-Advisory-Committee-of-Orange-County-WACO/111827158907574
http://www.twitter.com/WACO_H2O
http://www.youtube.com/user/orangecountywater


DATES TO REMEMBER  

AUGUST/SEPTEMBER 2019 

 

1. Aug 23 – 7:30 a.m. – South Orange County Economic Coalition 

2. Aug 23 - 11:30 a.m. – Chair/GM Meeting 

3. Aug 26 – 10:00 a.m. – WateReuse Meeting (Anaheim) 

4. Aug 28 – 10:00 a.m. – LF Utility Coordination Meeting 

5. Aug 30 – 8:00 a.m. – TV-6 (Gaskins) 

6. Aug 30 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

7. Sept 2 – LABOR DAY – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

8. Sept 3 – 7:30 a.m. – RRC Meeting 

9. Sept 3 – 7:30 a.m. – ISDOC Executive Committee Meeting 

10. Sept 4 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC/MET Directors Meeting 

11. Sept 5 – 8:30 a.m. – SOCWA Board Meeting 

12. Sept 6 – 7:30 a.m. – WACO Meeting 

13. Sept 6 – 11:30 a.m. – Chair/GM Meeting 

14. Sept 8-11 – WateReuse Conference (San Diego) 

15. Sept 11 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Admin/Finance Committee Meeting 

16. Sept 12 – 8:30 a.m. – SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting 

17. Sept 13 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

18. Sept 16 – 7:30 a.m. – Agenda Review Meeting 

19. Sept 16 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Public Affairs Meeting 

20. Sept 17 – 7:30 a.m. – WACO Planning Meeting 

21. Sept 18 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Board Meeting 

22. Sept 19 – 7:30 a.m. – OCWA 2019 Operator Expo (Rattlesnake Reservoir) 

23. Sept 19 – 8:00 a.m. – SAC Meeting 

24. Sept 20 – 11:30 a.m. – Chair/GM Meeting 

25. Sept 24 – 7:30 a.m. – Regular Engineering/Finance Committee Meeting 



26. Sept 24 – 12:00 p.m. – South County Agencies Meeting 

27. Sept 25-27 – CSDA Conference (Anaheim) 

28. Sept 26 – 7:30 a.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

29. Sept 27 – 8:00 am. – TV-6 (Freshley) 

30. Sept 27 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

 

 

 


























	Agenda
	Item #1 - Qtrly Rev of 401(k) Plan
	Item #2 - July 25, 2019 - Board Minutes
	Item #4 - ACWA Region 10 Election
	Item #5 - Consultant Agreement with Bob Hill
	Item #6 - Res No 19-8-3 - Charley Wilson Recognition
	Item #7 - Res No. 19-8-4- Standing COMMITTEE APPOINT
	Item #8 - GM report
	GM - page one
	GM - Potable and RW Sales
	GM - Water Use Reduction Slides
	GM - Customer service report
	GM - Total Recycled Wtr Production
	GM - Fluoride charts
	ETWDSITEMAPB
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPB-Layout 1


	ETWDSITEMAPC
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPC-Layout 1


	ETWDSITEMAPT2
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPT2-Layout 1


	ETWDSITEMAPH2
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPH2-Layout 1


	ETWDSITEMAPN
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPN-Layout 1


	ETWDSITEMAPF
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPF-Layout 1



	GM - Monthly Potable Water
	GM - Collection system activity report
	GM - Weekly WQ System Status
	GM - Will Serve
	GM - Spill Summary report
	GM - Battery Storage

	Item #9 - Legislative reports
	Item #10 - Public Outreach Wtr Conserv reports
	Public Outreach - part one
	Public Outreach - part two
	...
	EL TORO WATER DISTRICT
	CONSERVATION PROGRAM
	Monthly
	Status Report

	July 25, 2019



	Item #11 - SOCWA
	SOCWA - Aug 8, 2019
	SOCWA - Aug 15, 2019

	Item #12 - MWDOC
	MWDOC - Aug 5, 2019
	MWDOC - Aug 7, 2019
	MWDOC - Aug 12, 2019
	MWDOC - Aug 14, 2019

	Item #13 -LAFCO - Aug 14, 2019
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 14, 2019
	Wednesday, August 14, 2019
	8:15 a.m.
	8:15 a.m.


	Item #14 -SOCWMA - Aug 8, 2019
	Item #15 - ISDOC
	ISDOC - Aug 6, 2019 - part one
	ISDOC - Aug 6, 2019 - part two

	Item #16 - WACO - Aug 2, 2019
	Item #18 -DATES TO REMEMBER- Aug - Sept  2019
	ETWD Glossary of Water Terms - Acronyms



